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          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good afternoon,

          3  and welcome to this hearing of the State and Federal

          4  Legislation Committee. I am Joel Rivera, Chair of

          5  the Committee.

          6                 Today we have with us Council Member

          7  Robert Jackson, to my immediate right; Council

          8  Member Joe Addabbo; Councilwoman Helen Sears. To my

          9  immediate left we have Council Member Dilan, and

         10  Council Member Koppell.

         11                 Today we have a full agenda, if you

         12  have not already seen the agenda. We have several

         13  SLRs on the agenda supporting several pension

         14  proposals, most of which relate to programs already

         15  supported by the Council in the past.

         16                 SLR 13, which would provide

         17  accidental disability retirement for Deputy Sheriffs

         18  employed by the City of New York who are

         19  incapacitated due to an accident that occurs in the

         20  performance of their duties. It was adopted last

         21  year by the Council. However, the Governor did veto

         22  that legislation in 2002.

         23                 This year's legislation revised the

         24  language that the Governor found objectionable in

         25  2002.
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          2                 We also have SLR 60 and SLR 81,

          3  establishing a 25-year retirement program for Police

          4  Department communications, technicians or 9-1-1

          5  operators.

          6                 The Governor vetoed similar

          7  legislation in 2002 on the grounds that the plan did

          8  not provide for additional employee contributions.

          9  This year's legislation provides for additional

         10  employee contributions.

         11                 We also have a preconsidered SLR to

         12  be voted on by the Committee today, would expand the

         13  number of titles that are eligible to participate in

         14  a 25-year age 50 retirement program that was

         15  established for members of the New York City

         16  Employees Retirement System, the NYCERS, in 2002.

         17                 Although a vote is not scheduled on

         18  SLR 57 today, the Committee will be hearing

         19  testimony on that SLR which allows Correction

         20  Officers to obtain retirement credit for certain

         21  periods of child care leave.

         22                 Last year, similar legislation was

         23  signed into law that allowed members of the Police

         24  Pension Fund to obtain this credit.

         25                 The Committee will also be voting on
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          2  an SLR does not relate to pension plans. The

          3  Committee will vote on SLR 83, which would designate

          4  an area of the Glendale neighborhood of Queens as a

          5  special exemption area, allowing developers of new

          6  commercial buildings to seek a deeper real estate

          7  tax exemption than would otherwise be available.

          8                 We also have a Mayor's Message to

          9  vote on today. Mayor's Message 578 would authorize

         10  the Department of Transportation to increase the

         11  number of intersections where photo devices can be

         12  used from 50 to 100.

         13                 Finally, the Committee will be

         14  hearing testimony on two additional matters, which

         15  are not scheduled for a vote today.

         16                 First, the Committee will hear

         17  testimony on a preconsidered Mayor's Message on

         18  supporting proposed State legislation that would

         19  exempt New York City from the requirement that

         20  hearing officers at the New York City Parks

         21  Violation Bureau be admitted to practice law.

         22                 The Committee will also be hearing

         23  testimony on the New York City Department of

         24  Environmental Protection proposing to build a water

         25  filtration plant for the Croton Watershed.
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          2                 The Committee held an extensive

          3  hearing on this matter on May 30th; however, the

          4  State has amended the proposed legislation, and the

          5  Committee will therefore hear testimony regarding

          6  that amended legislation.

          7                 And due to the fact that we are not

          8  voting on this issue, we will push forward with the

          9  SLRs that we are voting with first to get that

         10  official business out of the way and then we'll have

         11  the hearing on the filtration issue so there will be

         12  more time for that.

         13                 Okay, I do understand that some of

         14  our Committee members have other committees to tend

         15  to, especially our Chair of the Standards and Ethics

         16  Committee, Helen Sears, and we're going to ask her

         17  to vote on all SLRs, with not objection from the

         18  Committee.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         20  much, Mr. Chair, and I vote aye on all those that

         21  are being considered for a vote today. And thank you

         22  very much for being excused.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: No problem,

         24  Helen. Thank you.

         25                 Okay, the first SLR we'll be hearing
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          2  from is SLR 13-A, and first on the roster is

          3  Rochelle Patricof. I hope I pronounced that

          4  correctly.

          5                 And if there is anybody else that is

          6  speaking on SLR 13, just sign one of these cards and

          7  provide it for us up here so we can get it all done

          8  at one time.

          9                 Thank you very much. Turn on the mic

         10  by pressing the small button. Introduce yourself for

         11  the record and proceed with your testimony.

         12                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: It's on, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: There you go.

         14                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: My name is James

         15  F. Hanley, H-a-n-l-e-y. I am the Commissioner of

         16  Labor Relations for the City of New York.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PATRICOF:

         18  My name is Rochelle Patricof. I am the First Deputy

         19  Commissioner for the New York City Department of

         20  Finance.

         21                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Is it my

         22  understanding that we're here at this point just on

         23  one particular bill, or several bills? Is it SLR 13?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: This is SLR 13.

         25                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Okay. On the
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          2  issue of SLR 13, which provides for a three-quarter

          3  disability, accidental disability pension for Deputy

          4  Sheriff, we're here to oppose this bill and ask you

          5  to not vote for this bill.

          6                 In the first instance, these types of

          7  bills with all other City employees, certainly since

          8  the late eighties we have supported these types of

          9  bills, once there has been a process of negotiations

         10  with the union so that we understand what the design

         11  of the bill is, and also if there is an agreement on

         12  the design of the bill, and the cost of the bill,

         13  and the costs are going to be borne by the

         14  employees. We have supported and actively supported

         15  these bills and these types of bills in the past.

         16                 I, myself, have lobbied for those

         17  types of bills under those circumstances before you,

         18  before this City Council and up in Albany as well.

         19                 That is not the case here but rather

         20  this is a bill that was introduced without going

         21  through the process which is contrary to all, and

         22  certainly I think somewhat of a slap in the face to

         23  all of those other employees that have done it that

         24  way.

         25                 It should be pursued in that fashion
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          2  and in that form, and in addition to that, right now

          3  I don't think there's any denial that we are in a

          4  very difficult budget situation, and adding on new

          5  improved pension bills at this point I think doesn't

          6  necessarily make sense.

          7                 These are civilian employees. To

          8  grant them the same benefits as police officers and

          9  firefighters have, we believe not only is a cross

         10  issue, we think certainly they don't, are not

         11  exposed to the same danger as all those other

         12  employees are.

         13                 In addition to that, even the actuary

         14  for the unions has ascribed a cost to it. It's not

         15  small, but it is a small group. The ripple effect to

         16  all of those other groups within the City of New

         17  York would be astronomical indeed, and let there be

         18  no doubt about it. We don't bargain, we don't pass

         19  bills in a vacuum. Every other group in the City of

         20  New York will be trying to achieve this same

         21  benefit, and I would suggest to you that I'll be

         22  here in front of this body again next year on bills

         23  for other people. So, it's merely a cascading effect

         24  that would start today if you pass these bills. I

         25  would ask you not to, for all of those reasons.
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          2                 In addition to that, the City's

          3  actuary has not had the opportunity to ascribe a

          4  cost to this bill. Actuarial costs, as I'm sure we

          5  all can appreciate, it's a very expensive exercise,

          6  a very complicated exercise indeed.

          7                 You're in fact tailoring each

          8  individual bill based upon the demographics of all

          9  of the people that it would apply to. So, it would

         10  cost a great deal.

         11                 But what the City's actuary says it's

         12  going to cost is what we have to pay. We certainly

         13  wouldn't want to overcharge these employees, which

         14  doesn't seem to be the case here. It does cost more

         15  money and we will have to pay that more money, and

         16  given the fiscal situation that we're in right now,

         17  we would ask you to -- we oppose and we would ask

         18  you to reject this bill.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 I do also know that another one of my

         22  colleagues has to depart, so we're going to ask him

         23  to vote on all matters being spoken about and voted

         24  on today.

         25                 Council Member Addabbo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

          3  very much, Mr. Chair.

          4                 I this time I vote aye on all matters

          5  being introduced today. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Commissioner, I do know that you're

          9  pressed for time, so would you like to testify on

         10  other issues, SLR 60, SLR 81, SLR 83, and 578, and a

         11  preconsidered SLR?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Well, the only

         13  ones I'm aware of that are pension bills at this

         14  point is certainly SLR 60/80, which provides for an

         15  improved pension benefit for 9-1-1 operators that

         16  are in Tier 2 and Tier 4 of the New York City

         17  Employees Retirement System.

         18                 Again, this particular bill, going

         19  through the process, which we have engaged in for

         20  these very same employees, it's an insult to all of

         21  those other employees that went through a process to

         22  establish what the costs were going to be, and to

         23  pay for those costs through employee contributions.

         24                 We owe something to those people that

         25  at least try to adhere to a process that is tried
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          2  and true for all of our employees.

          3                 Whether or not it costs six percent,

          4  this bill has increased employee contributions of

          5  six percent contained in the bill itself.

          6                 We have no idea whether or not that's

          7  the appropriate amount of money.

          8                 If, in fact, they are undercharging

          9  themselves and it costs more than that, we have to

         10  pay that additional amount of money and that's what

         11  the actuary will charge the City and that's what we

         12  must pay the actuary by law, in order to keep the

         13  system and the funds actuarily sound.

         14                 In addition to that, if six percent

         15  is too much, you certainly wouldn't want to make

         16  these employees pay more money than they would have

         17  to.

         18                 So, we would like to have the

         19  opportunity to have the actuary conduct a thorough

         20  analysis as to what the cost of this bill would be

         21  so that it's fair to everyone involved, including

         22  these employees.

         23                 In addition to that, there are

         24  possible technical problems in the legislation,

         25  since it might allow for a new participant to join
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          2  without having to pay the additional member

          3  contributions on any prior service that they might

          4  buy back. That technical defect would create

          5  problems and may void the whole bill, and in

          6  addition to that, it certainly would be terribly

          7  unfair to all the other employees that are paying

          8  those additional contributions.

          9                 There's one other bill which is a

         10  preconsidered bill, which is a retirement bill, for

         11  automotive positions, which provides for 25-year age

         12  55 retirement bill for those auto mechanics, as well

         13  as stationary engineers and senior stationary

         14  engineers, auto electricians, auto machinists,

         15  machinists and machinists helpers.

         16                 Again, to go outside of a practice

         17  which has been clearly established and certainly

         18  recognized by everyone on all sides of the table, we

         19  believe it's a mistake and it's certainly an insult

         20  to all of those other unions that did that.

         21                 It's also unclear whether or not the

         22  required additional member contributions of 4.83

         23  percent, which is what the bill calls for, whether

         24  or not that would cover the costs in the bill.

         25                 So, it's a greater cost to the City
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          2  of New York, and certainly we wouldn't want to see

          3  the employees pay more than they should, and in this

          4  time of a terrible, terrible budget situation that

          5  we're in, we think that it would be a mistake to

          6  pass these bills.

          7                 For all of those reasons, we would

          8  ask you to please reject these bills.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Ma'am?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER PATRICOF:

         11  The Department of Finance is in agreement with the

         12  Office of Labor Relations, and believe that it

         13  should not be legislated but part of collective

         14  bargaining.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 Are there any questions from the

         18  Committee members?

         19                 Seeing none, thank you very much.

         20                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we will hear

         22  testimony on SLR 83. We have Damon Hammerdinger. Is

         23  he here today?

         24                 Next we will proceed with SLR 57. We

         25  are not voting on this issue but we will hear
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          2  testimony on it.

          3                 Is there anyone to testify on SLR 57?

          4  Yes, we have Jonathan Schwartz and William

          5  Kwasnicki.

          6                 Thank you very much, gentlemen. Just

          7  state your name for the record and proceed with your

          8  testimony.

          9                 MR. KWASNICKI: Good afternoon. My

         10  name is William Kwasnicki. I'm Legislative Chairman

         11  for the Correction Officers Benevolent Association.

         12                 MR. SCHWARTZ: I'm Jonathan Schwartz,

         13  the actuarial consultant to Correction Officers

         14  Benevolent Association.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Proceed with your

         16  testimony.

         17                 MR. KWASNICKI: Good afternoon. I'm

         18  here in requesting a home rule approval for SLR 57.

         19  This still pertains to child care leave credit for

         20  Correction Officers who are forced to stop their

         21  career and take leave of absence to continue their

         22  obligations as parents to their child.

         23                 Normally when a person is put out

         24  sick by their doctor because of maternity leave,

         25  after the birth of the child they are given a
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          2  certain amount of time to report back to work and

          3  there are occasions some officers have to stay out

          4  beyond that time. They are then taken off the

          5  payroll and they are given a leave of absence to

          6  fulfill their obligations for this child care leave.

          7                 We are requesting that these officers

          8  be able to purchase the credit for their time spent

          9  raising their child for the first few months after

         10  birth, because of the obligations that are present

         11  with them.

         12                 In the Year 2001 similar legislation

         13  was awarded to the Police Department and we are now

         14  currently at the parity level the Police Department

         15  would pay and pension, we are requesting the same

         16  consideration be given to correction officers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Are you done with

         18  your testimony?

         19                 MR. KWASNICKI: Yes, I am.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Proceed with the

         21  next testimony.

         22                 MR. KWASNICKI: No, he's my actuary.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: There you go.

         24  Thank you very much.

         25                 MR. KWASNICKI: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And we will be

          3  voting this issue on Thursday, I believe.

          4                 MR. KWASNICKI: Thank you very much.

          5                 We are also joined by Council Member

          6  McMahon and Councilwoman Maria Baez.

          7                 At this point in time we'll be

          8  discussing the water filtration.

          9                 Actually we're going to finish up the

         10  business of the actual day, and we're going to vote

         11  on the SLRs that we just heard testimony on.

         12                 SLR 13. Will the clerk call the roll.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Monserrate.

         20                 (No response.)

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         24  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         25  abstentions, all items are adopted.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, thank you.

          3                 Now we're going to couple SLR 60, SLR

          4  81, SLR 83 and 578, as well as the preconsidered

          5  SLR.

          6                 Clerk, call the roll.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Can I just

         13  explain my vote, Mr. Chairman?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Of course, sir.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I just want

         16  to explain my vote in that on SLR 578, and I want

         17  the record to reflect that I have assurances from

         18  the Administration that when fines are sent out to

         19  those who receive a ticket for going through a

         20  camera light at a red light, that it will not say on

         21  the bill that courtesy of the New York City Council

         22  you are now receiving a ticket, because it is my

         23  understanding that the tickets now go out to say

         24  that thanks to the New York State Legislature and

         25  the New York City Council, we're fining you $110, or
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          2  whatever the moving violation is, and it's the

          3  truth, I've seen them. However, I want my colleagues

          4  to know that the Administration has assured me that

          5  it will say that we're in this all together and it

          6  won't single out one part of government against

          7  another, and accordingly, I vote aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Mr. Chairman,

         10  if I may be able to explain my vote?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I, too, am

         13  not a fan of the big brother cameras on the corners,

         14  and I'm glad to hear that at least Council Member

         15  McMahon has gotten that assurance from the

         16  Administration because if we're here increasing the

         17  number of cameras that will go on the corners, I

         18  wanted to be an act that we do it together as the

         19  City.

         20                 It's coupled with the other SLRs,

         21  which I'm going to vote for, so I will vote yes, but

         22  with the proviso that I think this is about the last

         23  time we should be visiting this issue.

         24                 So, I vote aye.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 Yes, we'll hold the vote open for any

          4  other members that come a little bit later on. We do

          5  have several other Committee meetings that people

          6  are attending now.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

          8  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          9  abstentions, all items are adopted, and Council

         10  Members, please sign the Committee report.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Is there any

         13  testimony for the presonsidered Mayor's Message?

         14                 Feel free to come forward and provide

         15  the testimony for us today.

         16                 Just state your name for the record.

         17                 MS. HELD: I'm Laura Held. I am the

         18  Chief Administrative Law Judge for the Department of

         19  Finance.

         20                 I appreciate your inviting me to

         21  testify on behalf of Finance Commissioner Martha

         22  Stark.

         23                 Can you hear me?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes.

         25                 MS. HELD: Okay. I strongly urge the
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          2  Council to pass a home rule in favor of message

          3  A.8696/5349, which will allow the Finance Department

          4  to hire Administrative Law Judges which are known by

          5  statute as hearing examiners as full-time civil

          6  service employees.

          7                 By hiring full-time ALJs, Finance

          8  will improve service to New Yorkers who contest

          9  their parking tickets and save at least a million

         10  dollars in administrative costs to the City.

         11                 The Mayor and the City Council have

         12  challenged Finance to do more with less and labor

         13  has challenged us to take advantage of opportunities

         14  to contract wherever possible.

         15                 This initiative will achieve both

         16  goals.

         17                 The Department of Finance currently

         18  uses 220 contract lawyers who serve as ALJs to

         19  adjudicate parking tickets throughout the five

         20  boroughs. Many of these per diem contract workers

         21  are splitting their time now between private

         22  practices lawyers and public service as

         23  Administrative Law Judges.

         24                 This is creating a great

         25  administrative burden for the Department of Finance,
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          2  between providing adequate staff for hearings to

          3  processing time sheets every week for each and every

          4  judge. Most importantly, having part-time

          5  contractors as ALJs makes it difficult to ensure

          6  that every New Yorker who contests the ticket is

          7  treated consistently and fairly.

          8                 The bill which is before you today

          9  would help Finance address each of these challenges.

         10                 Unionized employees with civil

         11  service protection are less likely to be swayed by

         12  political or budgetary pressures when ruling on a

         13  ticket than are per diem contract workers. It will

         14  be easier to get full-time civil servants with union

         15  protection to be swayed by those pressures.  I think

         16  that that's true over these per diem contract

         17  workers who may have other reasons to be swayed.

         18                 It will be easier to get these civil

         19  servants to follow procedures and guidelines that

         20  are necessary to ensure that all New Yorkers are

         21  treated consistently and fairly. We don't want the

         22  business person who arrives dressed up in a suit

         23  with a briefcase to be treated any differently than

         24  the teenager from Brooklyn who comes in jeans and an

         25  attitude perhaps fighting the same violation.
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          2  Fairness is really important to us and consistency

          3  is really important to us and to do that we really

          4  need a staff who works regularly scheduled attitudes

          5  so we can monitor them, so we can review basic

          6  guidelines with them and we can give them

          7  consistency back.

          8                 Having a full-time staff with regular

          9  hours is also going to allow Finance to avoid

         10  last-minute work cancellations, and I cannot tell

         11  you what a problem that is for us. Obviously these

         12  cancellations have a negative impact on service.

         13                 Currently when we have a backlog in

         14  one of our borough offices, and we want to provide

         15  extra staff, we have to work around these shifting

         16  schedules of per diem workers. It makes it very

         17  difficult to reduce the wait times and nobody wants

         18  to have to wait in a long line to have their parking

         19  ticket adjudicated.

         20                 When someone cancels at the last

         21  minute, it is often very, very difficult for us to

         22  replace that person, and that means we're short

         23  staff and the lines to adjudicate your tickets, as

         24  you have every right to do, grows longer.

         25                 Finally, employing these full-time
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          2  civil servants is going to save the City a million

          3  dollars because, per year, we will need far fewer of

          4  them, and we won't have to maintain a separate

          5  system for processing the payroll. That's a million

          6  dollars less that the City has to make up and reduce

          7  service cuts or layoffs.

          8                 Before I end my testimony, I just

          9  want to address the unfounded charge that by making

         10  ALJs employees, Finance is attempting to curb the

         11  judges' independence and raise revenue for the City.

         12  Really nothing could be farther from the truth.

         13                 Administrative Law Judges are not

         14  independent members of the judicial branch of

         15  government contrary to what's been written in the

         16  press.

         17                 They are contract workers employed by

         18  the Department of Finance, and while they do

         19  exercise discretion, they should do so within the

         20  guidelines set by the Chief Administrative Law Judge

         21  and the Finance Commissioner consistent with the

         22  laws that they are sworn to uphold.

         23                 This bill before you will not make

         24  the ALJ any less independent. They will still work

         25  for the Department of Finance, and the bill will
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          2  make it easier for us to enforce guidelines, the

          3  same way that federal and state criminal judges work

          4  within sentencing guidelines. Federal judges have to

          5  work within sentencing guidelines, and don't think

          6  it's unreasonable to ask hearing examiners on

          7  parking tickets to work within guidelines.

          8                 Without guidelines there would be no

          9  way to make sure that traffic laws are applied

         10  consistently and fairly. Having full-time employees

         11  will also ensure that future ALJs live in New York

         12  City and we believe that a judge who has to park in

         13  New York will have a better understanding of the

         14  impact of parking rules on the average New Yorker,

         15  and will be even more inclined to rule fairly and

         16  consistently.

         17                 Fairness and efficiency are the

         18  goals, not increase revenue.

         19                 Like the supposed loss of judicial

         20  independence, this is another myth, much like the

         21  media-created "ticket blitz." ALJs are not

         22  responsible for revenue, and we tell them that.

         23  Their job is to adjudicate tickets fairly and make

         24  sure that those who write tickets give New Yorkers

         25  fair and accurate notice.
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          2                 If adjudications was about revenue,

          3  then we would not have started dismissing more

          4  defective tickets sua sponte, or on our own, even

          5  when the person with the ticket hasn't pointed out

          6  the defect. This was one of the first policy changes

          7  we made in this Administration, and it has

          8  undoubtedly cost the City some money. But it is the

          9  right thing to do, and you shouldn't have to be a

         10  lawyer or an expert on the arcane details of traffic

         11  law, and some of them are indeed arcane, to receive

         12  basic justice and fairness.

         13                 Every New Yorker deserves to be

         14  treated consistently and fairly and expeditiously.

         15  New Yorkers expect their government to constantly

         16  look for new ways to provide better service at less

         17  cost - especially now, and this initiative will help

         18  Finance meet those expectations, so I urge you to

         19  vote favorably on the Home Rule message.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 I believe Council Member Jackson has

         24  a question for you, as well.

         25                 MS. HELD: Council Member Jackson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Good

          3  afternoon. I wanted to let you know as a member of

          4  the City Council and the Chair of the City Council's

          5  Contracts Committee, I support the City Department

          6  of Finance hiring Administrative Law Judges, those

          7  functions I think were contracted out for a long

          8  time, and I think it's a positive step in the right

          9  direction.

         10                 I do hope, though, what you're saying

         11  as far as your treatment and fairness of individuals

         12  is not just talk, and I'm very serious about that,

         13  because I've heard talk before and as a union

         14  representative that represented State Administrative

         15  Law Judges, I know that pressures have been put on

         16  Administrative Law Judges for certain numbers, and I

         17  don't think that's an appropriate thing to do.

         18                 I think if you hire professionals in

         19  order to carry out the job, you're supposed to

         20  monitor them and make sure they are using their

         21  judgement based on the law and the discretion that

         22  you have hired these individuals to do, as far as to

         23  evaluate the circumstances of the situation in which

         24  they are in front of you, meaning that they got a

         25  ticket and they'll listen to their arguments with
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          2  compassion, and the things that you would want and I

          3  would want when we go in front of an Administrative

          4  Law Judge and not just to say "guilty" and pay the

          5  fine.

          6                 MS. HELD: Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And, so, as a

          8  Chief Administrative Law Judge, I say to you as a

          9  legislator in the City of New York, you talk what I

         10  hope in reality becomes practice, and I do expect

         11  you and the other individuals that's responsible for

         12  ensuring that the Administrative Law Judges that

         13  you're talking about hiring have the compassion and

         14  dedication in order to listen to New Yorkers who

         15  have a situation and not just say, oh, were you a

         16  half a foot over the line? Yes or no? And if the

         17  answer is yes, then you're guilty.

         18                 MS. HELD: Anyone who speaks to a

         19  respondent like that, Council Member Jackson, will

         20  not have a job for long.

         21                 I fully appreciate your concerns, and

         22  I have practiced long enough in the Criminal Courts

         23  actually as a defense attorney, to not only

         24  appreciate your concerns, but it will be a very high

         25  priority of mine to see that judges appropriately
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          2  use discretion and are fair and open-minded when

          3  adjudicating tickets.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I appreciate

          5  that, and I wholeheartedly support this because I

          6  think in the long run if this was duplicated

          7  hundreds of times over in the City agencies, New

          8  York City could save a lot of money in order for us

          9  to be using that money on other things that we're

         10  fighting for to restore right now and in the City

         11  Council, as far as the New York City budget.

         12                 So, I appreciate you coming forward

         13  in explaining this, and I hope that what you have

         14  testified to is in practice and I will be monitoring

         15  it to ensure that it does.

         16                 MS. HELD: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: All right,

         19  Council Member Gentile also has a question, as well.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman.

         22                 Following up on Council Member

         23  Jackson, and I, too, support the Home Rule Message,

         24  but it just appeared to me that in your testimony,

         25  looking over your testimony here, that what you're
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          2  saying is that the current situation is that the per

          3  diem contract workers are subject to political

          4  pressures and budgetary pressures, and in fact are

          5  not, there are no definite guidelines that everybody

          6  is following; am I correct about that?

          7                 MS. HELD: Actually you're not

          8  correct. I don't believe I said that in my

          9  testimony.

         10                 What I am saying, because there have

         11  been some charges in the press, that somehow making

         12  -- and perhaps I went overboard in the testimony

         13  defending against charges that perhaps the City

         14  Council isn't even aware of. The press seems to get

         15  the idea that by making hearing examiners or ALJs

         16  City employees, that they would then seek to fill

         17  the City coffers with money based on what they

         18  recover in parking tickets.

         19                 So, I simply wanted to assure all of

         20  you that no one presently, and no one in the future

         21  will see that as their job. That's all I was trying

         22  to do.

         23                 For some reason, the Daily News seems

         24  to believe that that's what we're looking to do, and

         25  my point is simply that as civil servants with union
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          2  protection, I don't see that as something the public

          3  has to worry about.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: What do you

          5  see now as the consistency of the impartiality, the

          6  rulings?

          7                 MS. HELD: That's my concern, is that

          8  they're not consistent, as consistent as I would

          9  like. And the reason is not that we don't have

         10  guidelines. The reason is that people often work two

         11  days a week, say, and they move between the

         12  different boroughs, which means that, you know, it's

         13  hard to keep things straight when you're not in the

         14  same place and you don't have, you know, the same

         15  supervision, and it's hard to keep things in mind.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: A guideline

         17  is a guideline, isn't it? Wherever you are, whether

         18  you're in the Bronx or in Staten Island, whether

         19  you're in Brooklyn?

         20                 MS. HELD: It certainly is, and it

         21  should be, but the supervision isn't as consistent.

         22  And the fact that you don't work five days a week,

         23  frankly, is not as consistent.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay, thank

         25  you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          3  much. That's all.

          4                 MS. HELD: Thank you all.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Now we will be

          6  proceeding. We will now call Council Member Dilan to

          7  vote.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair. I request unanimous consent to vote on SLR

         10  13, Resolution 16, 81, 83 and 578 preconsidered

         11  Senate Bill 2365, Assembly 5175, I vote aye.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Mr. Chairman,

         14  I'd like to amend that. I'd like to vote on

         15  preconsidered Resolution, that would be Senate 2765,

         16  Assembly 8401.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you. We

         18  will also be hearing testimony on the New York City

         19  Department of Environmental Protection proposal to

         20  build a water filtration plant for the Croton

         21  Watershed.

         22                 We do have a C version of the

         23  Assembly bill with us today, A.8069-C. The new bill

         24  adds the requirement that the City conduct a

         25  supplemental Environmental Impact Statement on the
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          2  proposed land at the Van Cortlandt Park site. It

          3  also makes a number of other changes that we'll be

          4  examining in today's hearing.

          5                 So, first we will be starting off

          6  with Commissioner Chris Ward.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

          8  if I may? I appreciate the opportunity to sit with

          9  the Committee. As you know, Mr. Chairman, I'm not a

         10  member. I would ask of you, the Chair, and members

         11  of the Committee, because the C version that you

         12  just mentioned only came into everyone's hands a few

         13  minutes ago, that since you announced, and I'm

         14  pleased that there will not be a vote today, but

         15  there will be a vote presumably, probably on

         16  Thursday, because we have a Stated Meeting on

         17  Thursday, that you reserve some time, admittedly it

         18  would have to be a limited time, but some time for

         19  additional testimony on Thursday by those who

         20  obviously couldn't know what the C print said, since

         21  it wasn't available until a few minutes ago, and I

         22  think that as you know this deals with a project in

         23  my district, and I think that we should reserve some

         24  time on Thursday before the Committee votes for

         25  comments.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Well, we'll take

          3  that under consideration.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

          6                 Commissioner Ward. Begin.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Good morning.

          8  Thank you very much. My name is Chris Ward. I'm the

          9  Commissioner of the New York City Department of

         10  Environmental Protection, and I'm here to speak in

         11  support of the Council passing the Home Rule Message

         12  to secure the option for the City to evaluate the

         13  Mosholu Golf Driving Range as the primary location

         14  of the Croton Filtration Plant.

         15                 I've testified a couple of times

         16  before on the Council and the community, so I'll

         17  keep my remarks brief, setting the stage for a brief

         18  summary on the changes or the amendments to the bill

         19  that Councilman Koppell had referenced.

         20                 I'd start off by a statement that I

         21  made a couple of times before, that we live in a

         22  city which is fundamentally a built environment, and

         23  the controversial projects built years and decades

         24  ago, the projects that we take for granted today

         25  were built in a fashion which allows us to grow and
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          2  prosper as the City of New York, and perhaps the

          3  largest engineer construction project of all time

          4  was the water supply system for the City.

          5                 Today we face another question of

          6  legacy. We face the question of will the City be in

          7  a position to assure Croton water drinkers that

          8  their water meets the same healthy standards that

          9  Cat/Del uses as all nationwide surface water

         10  reservoir systems meet under the Surface Water

         11  Drinking Act.

         12                 We face that as a challenge, and a

         13  legacy for those Croton water users. And then we

         14  also face the legacy of is there an opportunity

         15  before us, given the unique nature of this project

         16  and the construction of this project, to leave a

         17  legacy for the Bronx communities in terms of its

         18  parks and its recreational facilities, and parks and

         19  recreational facilities, particularly the greening

         20  aspects of all of those parks, has such a long-term

         21  enormous health benefit as well as quality of life

         22  benefit and I'd even argue an economical development

         23  benefit for the City of New York.

         24                 Then we have an opportunity from a

         25  public perspective to secure a lasting legacy of
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          2  water supply, health and park and recreation health

          3  for the Bronx. And for that reason, the

          4  Administration has been proposing to maintain the

          5  Mosholu Golf Course as a viable option for siting

          6  the filter plant.

          7                 We are pleased that the Council is

          8  hearing the Home Rule Message, and we are pleased

          9  that the State Senate and Assembly have been working

         10  on crafting such a bill, which would allow the

         11  sufficient alienation to take place to consider

         12  Mosholu as an option.

         13                 I have testified repeatedly that from

         14  an Environmental Impact Statement, as well as from a

         15  Uniform Land Use Review Process, the Croton

         16  Filtration Plant, in terms of legal justification,

         17  would meet the necessary requirements to go into the

         18  Mosholu Golf Course. As I have testified, there was

         19  extensive public hearings, public review, through

         20  the ULURP process and there was a significant

         21  multi-page, thousands of pages of EIS assessments of

         22  that project within the golf course.

         23                 And as I have also testified, the

         24  project is today smaller, less environmentally

         25  sensitive, and operated in such a fashion that the
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          2  environmental impacts associated with this plant

          3  would by definition be less than the earlier plant.

          4  And I maintain that assertion today.

          5                 Nonetheless, there has been community

          6  concerns about whether or not the full impact and

          7  full assessment of this project, because it has been

          8  time since it had last been approved, there have

          9  been concerns with the actual changes in the design,

         10  as well as the construction, that the public had not

         11  had sufficient opportunity to review those.

         12                 Pursuant to the legislation as

         13  drafted now, Home Rule Message would be predicated

         14  upon the Department of Environmental Protection

         15  conducting a supplemental environmental impact

         16  statement to give the public an opportunity to view

         17  those changes, as well as for the Department to

         18  address any and all environmental issues that would

         19  occur during that review process.

         20                 Speaking on behalf of the

         21  Administration of the Department of Environmental,

         22  we are prepared pursuant to that legislation to

         23  undertake such an SEIS.

         24                 Following completion of that SEIS,

         25  the City would have before it the selection options
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          2  for where the most appropriate site would be.

          3                 Similarly, during that process, the

          4  public will have an opportunity to review the

          5  relative merits of the projects and the

          6  environmental impacts.

          7                 It is our hope, following securing

          8  the alienation language, which we would reserve as a

          9  critical option for the City to maintain Mosholu as

         10  an option, that the SEIS will give the community

         11  sufficient review opportunity to evaluate the

         12  Mosholu Golf Course.

         13                 So, on behalf of the Administration,

         14  we believe that with the SEIS requirement, with the

         15  commitment to secure an MOU to secure the $200

         16  million in direct funding for the Bronx, as well as

         17  the $43 million previously established within the

         18  ULURP application, the legacy opportunity that I

         19  spoke of at the outset of this hearing is here

         20  before us.

         21                 Failure to do so either, one,

         22  jeopardizes the legacy for the Parks projects, and

         23  in the longrun potentially undermines the siting of

         24  the best place for the Croton Filtration Plant.

         25                 So, we believe that the SEIS process,
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          2  with its review, with the period for comment, as

          3  well as the opportunities for the Department of

          4  Environmental Protection to make clear the benefits

          5  and opportunities or both is an appropriate way to

          6  go forward and we look forward to the Home Rule

          7  Message and the Senate and the Assembly passing the

          8  bill.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Real quick, Commissioner, is there a

         13  specific time frame to complete the SEIS?

         14                 COMMISSIONER WARD: There is not a

         15  regulated calendar for the SEIS. It is a matter of

         16  conducting the necessary traffic, air, noise

         17  impacts. It's a matter of scheduling public hearing,

         18  scoping process, public hearings, so there is not a

         19  mandated time frame as there is with ULURP, I would

         20  expect, however, in discussing this with staff, that

         21  we would see an SEIS process taking approximately

         22  six months.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, thank you.

         24                 Are there any questions from the

         25  Committee members?
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          2                 Before we take any other questions, I

          3  would like to ask Council Member Hiram Monserrate to

          4  vote on the SLRs that we voted on earlier today.

          5                 Council member?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair. Aye on all.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 Are there any questions from the

         10  Committee Members?

         11                 Oliver Koppell.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         13                 Commissioner, just several questions.

         14  First of all, in these, when you do the SEIS, will

         15  alternate sites be under consideration as part of

         16  that process?

         17                 COMMISSIONER WARD: It will be a

         18  public process which will allow the evaluation on

         19  the other two alternatives that we have discussed

         20  publicly, the East View site and the Harlem River

         21  site.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Commissioner,

         23  as you know there are some, and though I'm not a

         24  lawyer and I'm not an expert on the Land Use

         25  process, there are some who would argue that in
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          2  order to utilize the Van Cortlandt Park site it's

          3  necessary to have a zoning change, as I understand,

          4  and that would require a ULURP process which would

          5  take under ULURP six months. First of all, why do

          6  you think that ULURP is not necessary, and second of

          7  all, if there's some question as to whether it is or

          8  isn't necessary, why wouldn't it be prudent for the

          9  City to go through the ULURP process at the same

         10  time as you're doing the SEIS that you're now agreed

         11  to do?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Well, one, we

         13  don't think that the ULURP process is necessary. The

         14  zoning issue, as I have stated before in testimony

         15  can be addressed in a variety of fashions, and the

         16  substantive and qualitative difference between the

         17  components for evaluation within the SEIS versus the

         18  ULURP process are significant and for that reason we

         19  don't believe further ULURP action is required and

         20  if there is a finding that the zoning regulation

         21  would need to be addressed, as I've said there are a

         22  variety of fashions that we could use to do that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I would

         24  just simply say, as a matter of prudence, if you

         25  really want to do this, I would recommend you go
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          2  through the ULURP process, and there are those in

          3  the community, as well as those in the broader

          4  parts, and environmental community that think that's

          5  important.

          6                 The other thing is, there's some

          7  language in the bill that's interesting to me, and I

          8  was wondering how you interpret it.

          9                 At the end of the new language on

         10  line 20 on page two, it says "in addition to the

         11  supplemental EIS that you made reference to, it says

         12  the City of New York shall give due consideration to

         13  the dedication of Jerome Park Reservoir as

         14  parkland." What does that mean, "give due

         15  consideration?"

         16                 COMMISSIONER WARD: I won't parse the

         17  language in terms of legal requirements, rather what

         18  I would reference is I think that it reflects a

         19  significant community, a significant priority within

         20  a part of the Bronx at the Jerome Park Reservoir,

         21  can and should be part of a larger park network. The

         22  Department of Environmental Protection, as well as

         23  within the MOU process, takes no position on what

         24  are the parks projects that would best serve the

         25  Bronx as a whole? So, I think the due consideration
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          2  for Jerome takes place within that much larger

          3  public process, but having language such as this

          4  within the legislation it will require due

          5  consideration of Jerome within that larger park

          6  framework.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, as I

          8  understand it, the MOU would incorporate the ways in

          9  which the taking of the parkland would be

         10  compensated; isn't that right?

         11                 COMMISSIONER WARD: The language in

         12  the legislation refers to that you either replacing

         13  with fair market value or a similar amount for parks

         14  improvements.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And the MOU

         16  would be defining, it says the improved parkland

         17  would be part of the MOU, so the MOU could in fact

         18  require that the Jerome Park or part of the Jerome

         19  -- I'm sorry, the Jerome Reservoir area be made

         20  into parkland, as part of the compensation, if you

         21  will?

         22                 COMMISSIONER WARD: It could.

         23  Obviously this is a document which is yet to be

         24  finalized.

         25                 I would again simply caution that the

                                                            45

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  opportunities, the significant opportunities of the

          3  Borough of the Bronx and all the elected officials

          4  and all the communities, the MOU is intended to give

          5  a broad-based public discussion of how Parks'

          6  resources can best address Parks' needs and to

          7  unilaterally up front state that one particular park

          8  opportunity is greater than the other park

          9  opportunities within the MOU is something that I

         10  would simply caution against.

         11                 I think the MOU is intended to

         12  reflect a broad-based political requirement -- I'm

         13  sorry, Parks requirements of the Bronx as a whole,

         14  not one particular constituency.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But you

         16  concede, I guess you would have to, based on the

         17  language that that clearly would be one of the

         18  considerations.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Oh, yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The land swap

         21  would be one thing that could be incorporated in the

         22  MOU.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Sure. For

         24  consideration.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: No other
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          2  questions. Thank you very much.

          3                 Commissioner, I would like to thank

          4  you for negotiating with the Speaker and I on this

          5  very important issue, and allowing for the

          6  Supplemental EIS to be put into the language and for

          7  endorsing it as well. It did address a lot of the

          8  concerns from the community, and I think it's a good

          9  step in the right direction on your part.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WARD: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         13  much, Commissioner.

         14                 For recordkeeping purposes, we will

         15  now announce the results of the vote on previously

         16  voted SLRs.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of eight in

         18  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         19  abstentions, all items having been voted on by the

         20  Committee are adopted.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We will continue

         22  the hearing on the water filtration plan.

         23                 We have a number of people

         24  testifying.

         25                 We have Dan Carlson, from the Sierra
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          2  Club first on our roster.

          3                 Is Dan Carlson here today? Oh, he's

          4  right there, okay.

          5                 Just state your name for the record

          6  and proceed with your testimony.

          7                 MR. CARLSON: My name is Don Carlson.

          8  I am Conservation Chair for the Atlantic Chapter of

          9  the Sierra Club. Atlantic Chapter is New York State.

         10                 It's a bit difficult to testify

         11  here.  At 11:30 our guy in Albany said there is no

         12  version C of this bill. So I came on over here based

         13  on trying to talk about version B of the bill. So,

         14  some of the things I wanted to talk about in version

         15  B, and apparently now in version C, so I do hope

         16  that Assemblyman Koppell's (sic) request is granted

         17  that there is time for us to take a look at version

         18  C before you take a vote on Thursday.

         19                 I would like to say two things,

         20  though. Maybe three.

         21                 First, that the basic premise of this

         22  alienation bill is wrong. The City does not need to

         23  chemically filter Croton waters. The City can

         24  protect the public health better by protecting the

         25  watershed, protecting the water at its source.
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          2                 To spend $1.5 billion of water

          3  ratepayer money for this unneeded filtration plant,

          4  a particularly regressive form of expenditure, is

          5  close to scandalous.

          6                 The second point I wanted to make

          7  perhaps has been taken care of in version C. From

          8  Commissioner Ward's testimony on the May 30th

          9  hearing, he was clear that the DEP would do its best

         10  to avoid any new environmental review of this

         11  massive project, and I just heard him say, yes, he's

         12  willing to do the SEIS.

         13                 We hope that in version C there's not

         14  vague language, okay?

         15                 We hope that in version C it

         16  specifically requires a full SEIS, not simply to

         17  conformance to a law, because we saw in Commissioner

         18  Ward's slides on May 30th that he believes that he's

         19  within the law to not conduct any additional

         20  environmental reviews.

         21                 And in fact, they've already let the

         22  $63.4 million construction management contract to

         23  start this building, if indeed they do not have to

         24  conduct an SEIS.

         25                 An SEIS, I'm not totally familiar
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          2  with all the terms, but many of these reviews

          3  require the person making the review, the agency

          4  making the review, consider a no-action alternative,

          5  or consider alternatives to the project being

          6  considered. That is an alternative to filtration.

          7                 That has been given short shrift

          8  before by the DEP. We hope that if this is required

          9  in an SEIS that it is not given short shrift in the

         10  future, that indeed it is fully considered and the

         11  people who believe there is indeed an alternative to

         12  filtration, such as ourselves and many other

         13  environmental organizations, have an opportunity to

         14  get that on the table and have it fully considered

         15  in the environmental review process.

         16                 A last point I'd like to make, it's

         17  perhaps a small point but I think it's important.

         18                 Again, in version B it says on line

         19  15, "upon the completion of the water filtration

         20  facility-related construction, the City of New York

         21  shall restore the surface of the lands."

         22                 We've seen occasions where the DEP

         23  has not been particularly careful about restoring

         24  lands or restoring them even in any reasonable

         25  amount of time.
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          2                 I'd like to suggest that you change

          3  the words there, that instead of saying upon the

          4  completion of the water filtration facility-related

          5  construction, that you say within two years of the

          6  completion of the facility the City of New York

          7  shall fully restore the surface of the land that

          8  they have dug up to build this plant.

          9                 Thank you very much for your

         10  consideration.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         12  much. And in reference to the SEIS, we actually

         13  heard the concerns from the community and we heard

         14  the testimony on May 30th and the Speaker and I had

         15  conversations with the State and said that we are

         16  firmly requesting that the Supplemental

         17  Environmental Impact Statement must be completed,

         18  and now we are fortunate enough that that in the new

         19  C bill, it is firm language that mandates by law

         20  that a Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement

         21  does get completed before the site is proposed.

         22                 MR. CARLSON: Thank you for that.

         23  That's very important.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 Next we have Fay Muir, from the

          3  Norwood Community Action.

          4                 How are you doing, Fay? Long time no

          5  see.

          6                 Proceed.

          7                 MS. MUIR: Yes, good morning. Good

          8  afternoon.

          9                 I also did not see the version, and I

         10  appreciate Councilman Koppell letting us know what

         11  the language was, but I can only comment on

         12  testimony that I've heard and also what I think

         13  should be included, and I take this opportunity to

         14  respond to the comments of the NRDC, that the

         15  Croton, and I quote, "has become less reliable, with

         16  eutrophic conditions and other problems

         17  necessitating the system's shutdown for months at a

         18  time" also "New Yorkers whose water is drawn from

         19  Croton reservoirs are receiving lower quality

         20  water."

         21                 It's important to distinguish between

         22  the source waters and distribution pipes. The

         23  filtration plant processes source waters and will

         24  not solve shutdowns and color violations caused from

         25  pipes.
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          2                 The Croton was shut down for months

          3  because of an oil leak and a filtration plant cannot

          4  handle this and many other pollutants. Croton water

          5  is superior to the Catskill/Delaware, which is

          6  protected in several aspects, as can be verified by

          7  the DEP website and several years of water quality

          8  reports, one example is cryptospiridium.

          9                 The New York City DEP states that the

         10  City's goal is to provide equally high-quality water

         11  to all its users. However, to the City equal means

         12  that $250 million in source water protection for the

         13  Cat/Del but only $10 million for the Croton. DEP,

         14  however, is willing to spend the $250 million to

         15  purchase Bronx parks for a filtration plant that

         16  could mean paving over of the watershed by

         17  development and less quality water for a higher

         18  price.

         19                 The reason being that immediately the

         20  filtration plant goes on line, laws become less

         21  stringent for source waters and development cannot

         22  be legally stopped. Equal treatment should mean

         23  across the board protections for source waters and

         24  the money could be better spent on preventing

         25  pollutants from entering source waters and improving

                                                            53

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  the distribution system.

          3                 Should the Council decide on passing

          4  Home Rule enabling park alienation, it should make

          5  certain that the lands requested in the Bill is the

          6  maximum amount that can be used. DEP requested one

          7  acre for the Third Water Tunnel which has increased

          8  into 11 acres to date, an example of what can happen

          9  if a maximum land use is not mandated.

         10                 The Council should also include

         11  compensation for parks which could mean an equal

         12  amount of land, mitigation for the community

         13  impacted, funding for protection of the watershed

         14  and for the communities receiving the waste that

         15  will become future brownfields.

         16                 The City Council should insist that

         17  DEP does a proper comparison of all sites, which

         18  means that ULURP and EIS must be done for the new

         19  design of Van Cortlandt Park. The best and most

         20  effective solution for clean affordable water is not

         21  to build a filtration plant. For a fraction of the

         22  cost, emphasis on the watershed protection and a

         23  less costly alternative could have superior results.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very
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          2  much, Ma'am.

          3                 Next we'll have Eileen P. Doherty,

          4  Esquire, from Bob Ungar and Associates' office.

          5                 MS. DOHERTY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 I'm here on behalf of the Building

          7  and Trade Council of the City of New York, of

          8  Greater New York, excuse me.

          9                 We have no objection to the concept

         10  of a Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement,

         11  but our concern is that if it is in fact found that

         12  the Mosholu site is the best site, that the jobs

         13  should remain within our City, that we should not be

         14  spending money exporting jobs to Westchester County,

         15  which is one of the alternative sites, but 2000 jobs

         16  could remain within our own City, if this site is

         17  the best site environmentally, as has been proposed

         18  so far, and unless there is a change, we certainly

         19  hope that you will consider continuing to keep it

         20  within our City.

         21                 If we move the site, if there is a

         22  filtration plant, and it is moved out to

         23  Westchester, we'll be paying money to another

         24  county, we will be giving virtually City money,

         25  taxpayer money to another location. We will be
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          2  enhancing the people of Westchester County to the

          3  detriment of the people of the City of New York.

          4                 The Building Trades have lost 12,000

          5  jobs in the last two years. If this is to be built,

          6  2,000 jobs could be retained within this City. Those

          7  people would be paying taxes, they will be

          8  purchasing items within the City of New York and

          9  continuing to contribute to the sales tax, and to

         10  the betterment of our City.

         11                 So, we support the legislation as is

         12  proposed and we encourage you to support the Home

         13  Rule Message as it has been sent down on the C

         14  version.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 I think Council Member Koppell has a

         19  question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: How could we

         21  guarantee that the jobs at the -- assuming it's

         22  built at the Van Cortlandt site or assuming it's

         23  built in the Bronx, how could we guarantee that the

         24  jobs would go to people who reside within the City

         25  or at least a significant number of them go to
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          2  people who reside within the City?

          3                 MS. DOHERTY: I don't know that we can

          4  necessarily say that they will reside in the City,

          5  but the jobs will be within the City. They will be

          6  paying taxes, sales taxes, they'll be purchasing,

          7  they'll be coming into our City if they don't live

          8  in the City, and most Building Trades' workers do

          9  live within the City. Most of the construction

         10  trades' workers, particularly the less-skilled

         11  workers who need the work. The more skilled

         12  tradesmen, most of them also reside within New York

         13  City. I'm not sure of the percentages, we can

         14  certainly get you that information.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I think

         16  it would be very useful, because some of us have a

         17  concern that actually most of the workers live

         18  outside the City. So, if you have any numbers, and I

         19  don't exactly know how you would compile it, maybe

         20  by local or by contractor, I frankly don't know how

         21  you compile it, but I would be interested in seeing

         22  how you would assure, or how it would be assured

         23  that a significant percentage of these people

         24  actually do live within the City, because with all

         25  due respect, them coming into the City to work for

                                                            57

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  the day and then going home, especially where this

          3  site is about a quarter mile from the Westchester

          4  border, if that, I'm not sure that having them come

          5  there to work is going to guarantee us substantial

          6  expenditure of any money in the City.

          7                 MS. DOHERTY: I don't know how many

          8  construction workers actually live in Westchester

          9  either. The alternative is, we don't know at this

         10  point who would be hired. Obviously this would be

         11  contracted out and we don't know who those workers

         12  would be until that's actually taking place, so that

         13  would be a very difficult question to answer

         14  specifically.

         15                 We could give you probably

         16  percentages and various trades that would be

         17  involved, but I don't think we can give you much

         18  more precise than that at this point.

         19                 Also, how do we know who will be

         20  living where by the time this takes place?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That's the

         22  problem, you see. We hear you and others come and

         23  argue, and all of us feel sympathetic to that

         24  argument, but we really have no assurance that

         25  argument is really going to sway, or that that's the
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          2  facts behind that argument. The alleged facts are

          3  really going to be ultimately proven correct.

          4                 MS. DOHERTY: Well, to the best of my

          5  knowledge, more than half of our members do live in

          6  the City of New York. I don't have a specific

          7  number, but, again, if there is a further hearing we

          8  can certainly provide that information.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Well, what I'll

         10  ask is that you forward me a breakdown of the Trades

         11  Associations by local and forward that over to my

         12  office and we'll cc it to the members, and we'll

         13  ensure, Oliver, that you receive a copy of that,

         14  because we obviously do want to see that, if this is

         15  the site in the Bronx that is chosen, that jobs stay

         16  within the Bronx, as well as within the City of New

         17  York, and a significant portion of those jobs.

         18                 MS. DOHERTY: Also, we are concerned

         19  about spending money within New York City, and the

         20  idea of the money that is given to those workers

         21  going outside the City, we'd be paying different

         22  localities for their taxes and revenue.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And 2,000 jobs is

         24  what it would create actually?

         25                 MS. DOHERTY: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Two-thousand

          3  jobs.

          4                 MS. DOHERTY: That's the estimate at

          5  this point.

          6                 Certainly if there were any changes

          7  in the SEIS, I'm sure that that could change up or

          8  down, I don't know. But at this point that is the

          9  estimated number of jobs.

         10                 We've lost 12,000 in this City,

         11  within this City of New York, from wherever those

         12  people live. We need construction in this City to

         13  keep people coming to this City. So, those 2,000 are

         14  significant.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DOHERTY: Okay. Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 MS. DOHERTY: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we will hear

         19  from Tom P. Maguire from Local 15.

         20                 MR. MAGUIRE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Real quick, sir.

         22                 We also have made copies of the bill,

         23  so if anyone would like to see a copy of the bill,

         24  they're by the Sergeant-At-Arms desk there, please

         25  feel free to grab yourself a copy so you can
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          2  decipher it, critique it, and be prepared. Thank

          3  you.

          4                 Please.

          5                 MR. MAGUIRE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 My name is Tommy Maguire, and in

          7  addition to be President and Manager for the

          8  International Union of Operating Engineers, Locals

          9  15, 15A, 15B, 15C and 15D, I'm also General Vice

         10  President of our International Union of Operating

         11  Engineers, President of the 35,000 member New York

         12  State Conference of Operating Engineers.

         13                 In addition, I'm Vice President of

         14  New York City Building Instruction Trades Council

         15  and Vice President of the State AFL-CIO.

         16                 Local 15 members include

         17  highly-skilled operations, construction equipment

         18  operators and mechanics, certified welders, City and

         19  State and Con Edison and survey engineers, all of

         20  whom live in New York City in the surrounding area,

         21  in the Metropolitan area and work in the five

         22  boroughs.

         23                 We operate and maintain the heavy

         24  instruction equipment used in large scale

         25  construction projects in the region.
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          2                 Our union agrees with the

          3  environmentalists, and others that the Croton

          4  Watershed must be protected to ensure that our water

          5  is safe to drink.

          6                 No one wants to spend our hard-earned

          7  tax dollars on a facility that's not absolutely

          8  necessary.

          9                 We have plenty of other projects to

         10  build that could protect our environment and benefit

         11  the Bronx. And if we got a waiver on it, I would

         12  entertain, which we won't because it's mandated, the

         13  federal government says it's going to be done, and

         14  if it could be waived, I would have no problem with

         15  that money being spent on other meaningful projects,

         16  such as sewers and watermains and pollution plants.

         17  But the federal government has said nay.

         18                 However, the federal government has a

         19  Court order, as I said, that requires the City to

         20  filter the water. Environmental officials have made

         21  it clear that filtration is critical to ensure that

         22  our water remains drinkable.

         23                 Council Member Rivera, people in your

         24  district drink Croton water. People of the Upper

         25  West Side of Manhattan, and dozens of Bronx
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          2  neighborhoods depend on Croton Water. In fact, most

          3  residents of the South and East Bronx drink only

          4  water from the Croton system. They need to be sure

          5  that our water is safe.

          6                 Building this facility in the Bronx

          7  keeps the economic investment and employment

          8  opportunities where they belong, in the Bronx and in

          9  New York City, at the lowest cost to New York City

         10  water users. The thousands of construction jobs that

         11  will be created will be prevailing wage jobs that

         12  can support a family.

         13                 These are the kind of jobs that

         14  should stay in City neighborhoods. Of course, it

         15  won't be just Bronx residents who build this

         16  facility, but a large percentage of the workforce

         17  will be local.

         18                 Make no mistake - if the plant is

         19  built Upstate, the jobs will go to people in

         20  Westchester and places north, with New York City

         21  taxpayer money. Taxpayers in Westchester County

         22  aren't paying for this. Taxpayers in New York City

         23  are. Therefore, the construction and after

         24  construction jobs should stay in the Bronx. And I

         25  will make a concerted effort to make sure that any
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          2  of my members, and I have close to 500 that live in

          3  the Bronx, they will have opportunity, if they want

          4  to work in the Bronx, because, you know, we work in

          5  all five boroughs. Some members prefer to work on

          6  different projects. If they want to work on that

          7  project in the Bronx, I'd be more than happy to

          8  accommodate them.

          9                 The Bronx Construction workers who

         10  are paid prevailing wages on projects like this one

         11  spend money in Bronx stores and businesses. But they

         12  earn more than just a good paycheck. They also

         13  receive a very good benefits package, including

         14  comprehensive healthcare benefits. Their health care

         15  dollars are spent on Bronx doctors and Bronx

         16  hospitals.

         17                 If you don't believe me, go ask the

         18  officials at Montefiore Hospital in the Bronx. They

         19  know how much of their income comes from

         20  construction union health plans. They would hate to

         21  lose that income.

         22                 If this location is approved by the

         23  legislature, the City will commit up to $200 million

         24  for improvements to Van Cortlandt Park, and other

         25  parks and open spaces in the Bronx.
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          2                 We shouldn't let that amenity money

          3  go up to people in Westchester. They thought, if

          4  they got it, they thought they died and went to

          5  Heaven, you can't let that happen.

          6                 It's a win/win situation for

          7  everybody. For the life of me, I can't understand

          8  why anyone in this room, or outside this room, who

          9  has worked so hard to make New York City parks

         10  better, would oppose this kind of opportunity.

         11                 After all, we've successfully built

         12  many projects on City parks before. Subways have

         13  been constructed under Central Park. City Water

         14  Tunnel 3 built its valve chambers under Central

         15  Park. Staten Island's drinking water is stored in

         16  holding tanks built under Silver Lake Park. So

         17  what's the problem with this project? None.

         18                 Please keep in mind that a water

         19  treatment plant is not the same as a sewage

         20  treatment plant. Our members build both. There are

         21  no problems with odors and the like with the water

         22  treatment plant.

         23                 Clearly, if this project has to be

         24  built, it should be done in the Bronx. Our union

         25  stands ready to work with the local community, to be
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          2  a good neighbor while the construction goes forward.

          3                 I ask that you approve the Home Rule

          4  Message necessary for the New York State Legislature

          5  to approve the bill to use the land in Van Cortlandt

          6  Park under the Mosholu Driving Range, to build the

          7  much-needed filtration plant.

          8                 Thank you for your time today, Mr.

          9  Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Maguire. We would ask that you provide as many jobs

         12  out of your local to the Bronx as possible, if you

         13  have 500, try to see if any of those members would

         14  like to work there.

         15                 MR. MAGUIRE: Absolutely. Absolutely.

         16  Absolutely.

         17                 You can bring a horse to the water

         18  fountain, you can't make him drink it. But if my

         19  members want to work in the Bronx, I have members

         20  all the time say can I go here, can I go?

         21  Absolutely. I'll entertain them. I always have and I

         22  always will.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         24  much for your testimony.

         25                 Council Member Koppell.
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          2                 MR. MAGUIRE: Good to see you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Nice to see

          4  you.

          5                 MR. MAGUIRE: We know each other a

          6  long time.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: We do.

          8                 Do you have an apprenticeship program

          9  or other program that would allow Bronx residents to

         10  qualify to become members of your union?

         11                 MR. MAGUIRE: Sure.

         12                 We have an agreement with the New

         13  York City School Construction Authority, with the

         14  Port Authority. We use the high schools as a source

         15  for our apprentices. We have, I would say at least

         16  half of our apprentices are minorities and women,

         17  historically. And you know, that's another point you

         18  brought up, and I'm glad you brought that up. What

         19  is the sense of me, as the President and Business

         20  Manager, and my Training Director, training young

         21  men and women to go to work on meaningful jobs, if

         22  you or anyone else would deny them that opportunity

         23  to go on a meaningful job like the filtration plant?

         24  It's going to provide many thousands of jobs, and,

         25  you know, I hate to go back to the horse and buggy
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          2  days, but some people would take us there, if we

          3  didn't be positive in this City to build meaningful

          4  jobs, we'd still be in horse and buggies.

          5                 This is a very, very important

          6  project. It's important for the health of the people

          7  in the Bronx. Asthma is a big problem in the Bronx,

          8  in certain parts of Harlem and other parts of the

          9  City. I would think cleaner water would be better

         10  for people who have asthma and other related

         11  illnesses. More than that, pure water is so

         12  important. The water in New York City is pure. The

         13  people that live in New York City, so they got a

         14  waiver. We want that pure water up in the Bronx as

         15  well, and, you know, we train our people in the

         16  school.  Every day of the week, 52 weeks a year we

         17  have people in that training school from the Bronx.

         18                 They can apply every year that we

         19  recruit. We have a state certified training program,

         20  a federally-approved training program, and we do a

         21  good job, and our members and our training

         22  coordinators and directors do an excellent job.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If you could

         24  provide, because it would be meaningful, I think, if

         25  you provide us with some sort of a memo that would
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          2  show us how many people you think from the Bronx

          3  would, in fact, get jobs at the site?

          4                 MR. MAGUIRE: Well, the question you

          5  pose is, we're a service trade, number one, okay?

          6  Unlike the laborers, iron workers, the carpenters,

          7  we don't put that many people on the job, they're

          8  operators. You only have so many pieces of

          9  construction equipment on the job, all right?

         10                 So, it's hard for me to tell you how

         11  many jobs from my union are going to be there. It

         12  will be a sizable amount. It's a billion

         13  three-hundred million, it's a five-year project.

         14  It's a tremendous concrete job. And you know, the

         15  best part of our industry, we not only build

         16  expeditiously and safely, Building Union, but we

         17  also take into consideration the intrusion into a

         18  neighborhood, as we would in the Bronx.

         19                 And with the sophisticated equipment

         20  that we have, and the great information and

         21  experience that the engineers and contractors have

         22  in doing each and every job in the City, there will

         23  be a concerted effort to make sure that there will

         24  be the least amount of intrusion as possible.

         25                 They say if you can build in New
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          2  York, you can build anywhere in the world, okay? And

          3  it's evident here today. And I appreciate this,

          4  getting an opportunity to talk before the City

          5  Council. I lived in the Bronx for 28 years. I was

          6  born in the Bronx, so I didn't fall out of a tree,

          7  and my sympathies are always will be, I never forget

          8  who brought me to the dance, it was my mother and

          9  father in the Bronx.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         11  much, sir.

         12                 MR. MAGUIRE: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We will now hear

         14  from Marian H. Rose. She is from the Croton

         15  Watershed Clean Water Coalition. Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 DR. ROSE: Mr. Chairman, thank you for

         18  this opportunity to comment. I've commented many

         19  times before, as you know. And the comments, I was

         20  hoping to comment on the version C of the Home Rule

         21  bill, and unfortunately I only just got a glimpse of

         22  it, so I do not wish to comment on something I

         23  haven't been able to study.

         24                 However, I would like to comment on

         25  the process itself.
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          2                 CWCWC or the Croton Watershed Clean

          3  Water Coalition, is a coalition of over 55 groups.

          4  We probably represent well over 200,000 members, and

          5  our membership includes Queens, Manhattan, the

          6  Bronx, all over New York City, that's where our main

          7  focus is, and also throughout Westchester and Putnam

          8  County.

          9                 After all, Putnam County and

         10  Westchester, large parts of them lie in the

         11  watershed, and, therefore, we are very concerned

         12  about protecting that watershed.

         13                 We feel that the water is still very

         14  high quality. This is proven by the DEP's own

         15  website, where they, every few days every year, tell

         16  you what the latest results are. And because the

         17  water is high quality, the Reservoir should be

         18  protected.

         19                 However, we are also concerned -- we

         20  are not only concerned with the watershed, we are

         21  also concerned with rising water and sewer rates in

         22  the City. In addition to the already sharp rise in

         23  New York City taxes that will burden the taxpayers

         24  throughout the City, those in lower income groups

         25  will bear a disproportionate burden, this according
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          2  to recent testimony by Commissioner Ward, on January

          3  31st, 2003, of the DeWitt Clinton High School in the

          4  Bronx.

          5                 For what will these New York City

          6  residents be paying? We've been told that over $200

          7  million out of the 1.3 billion for the plant will be

          8  a sweetener or "honey" according to the New York

          9  Times.  This will be in the form of embellishments

         10  for parks throughout the Bronx only.

         11                 To those members of this Committee

         12  who do not represent Bronx districts: are you asking

         13  your already hard-pressed constituents to support

         14  expenditures from which they derive no benefit?

         15                 Are Queens' residents, for example, a

         16  very large number who are opposed to this plant,

         17  willing to have a part of their rate dollars

         18  diverted to embellish parks in the Bronx rather than

         19  improve the water they drink?

         20                 And even in the Bronx, many residents

         21  will not benefit, namely, those who live in the

         22  vicinity of this proposed industrial complex.

         23                 Over six years we are told it will

         24  take to build this plant, there will be constant

         25  heavy truck traffic, constant blasting to dig the
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          2  60-foot hole, the denuding of an area larger than

          3  the World Trade Center, the displacement of

          4  thousands of rats from the park that will overrun

          5  the neighborhood.

          6                 This is an area now enjoyed by the

          7  local residents where there is a children's

          8  playground and several hundred mature, shade-giving

          9  trees - all much needed in a neighborhood where

         10  asthma rates are among the highest in the City.

         11                 Before you decide on this Home Rule

         12  Message, we ask the members of your Committee to

         13  give it a hard look - to carefully examine its

         14  legality, to take into account the negative

         15  consequences it will have on your constituents both

         16  financially and in quality of life, and above all,

         17  to carefully examine other options to this

         18  industrial plant - other options whereby New York

         19  City residents could be assured of safe drinking

         20  water at a fraction of the cost and with far less

         21  disruption to their lives.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 Actually, this project will not be
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          2  done with City Expense dollars, it will be done with

          3  Capital dollars, which is the taking of a bond, and

          4  therefore will not immediately impact the City

          5  residents. If we don't have a process in which we

          6  move forward in any way, shape or form, the City of

          7  New York would be penalized upward of $25,000 per

          8  day, and has already faced $100,000 in fines,

          9  because we did not meet the April 30th deadlines,

         10  and that doesn't come against the City Expense

         11  dollars, that comes out of your water rate bills,

         12  and everyone's water rate bills, and that has

         13  already increased and therefore if no action is

         14  taken, the Queens' members, the Brooklyn members,

         15  the Manhattan members, Staten Island members would

         16  face even heftier water rate increases due to the

         17  fact that $25,000 per day is a significant increase

         18  in penalties and fines.

         19                 So, therefore, I don't think that the

         20  argument of should their constituents pay for it, I

         21  don't think that that's a sound argument due to the

         22  fact that if nothing is done they would definitely

         23  pay for it in the fines.

         24                 So, we heard the concerns on that and

         25  that is exactly why we pushed extremely hard for the
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          2  Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement, because

          3  we've heard a concern from the community and we've

          4  understood the fact that we needed to see a sound

          5  plan, how it would affect in terms of the

          6  environment and in terms of the neighborhood, in

          7  terms of a cost comparison to that nature and that

          8  is extremely we are at least at this portion, and

          9  grateful of the fact that we have been fortunate

         10  enough to get the Environmental Impact Study into

         11  this new piece of legislation, and it gives a lot

         12  more teeth to the City of New York.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 Next we have Allison Farina from the

         15  New Yorkers for Parks.

         16                 Good afternoon, Allison. Just state

         17  your name for the record.

         18                 MS. FARINA: Good afternoon. My name

         19  is Allison Farina. I'm the Director of Government

         20  and Community Affairs at New Yorkers for Parks, a

         21  citywide advocacy organization, working to promote

         22  and protect New York's 28,700 acres of parkland.

         23                 I want to thank Speaker Miller,

         24  Chairman Rivera, and the entire City Council for

         25  allowing the public to comment prior to a City
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          2  Council vote on such an important issue.

          3                 Based on Commissioner Ward's

          4  testimony today, we are glad to hear that there is

          5  some kind of commitment now to completing an SEIS

          6  and zoning amendment.

          7                 However, we feel it's important for

          8  the zoning amendment and SEQRA to be addressed

          9  before alienating the land. Any attempt to shorten

         10  the method to alienate will set a horrible precedent

         11  in this City for other parkland.

         12                 So, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: While there

         16  is a requirement in the bill for a Supplemental

         17  Environment Impact Statement to be prepared, there's

         18  nothing about requiring any kind of ULURP process to

         19  change the zoning.

         20                 The position of the City is that it

         21  doesn't require a ULURP process, it can be done by

         22  Mayoral decision alone, and I just want that to be

         23  clear to you and your group, because that was one of

         24  the things that we have been asking for that's not

         25  in the bill, and that is a complete ULURP process
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          2  which would include consideration by local community

          3  boards, and while this environmental process will

          4  have hearings, it will not have the same

          5  consideration by local community boards that the

          6  ULURP process would require. They're different

          7  requirements, different processes. They could go

          8  concurrently, but you should know that we have not

          9  achieved that yet.

         10                 MS. FARINA: Also, I'm unclear, if I

         11  can? Excuse me. I looked over quickly version C, it

         12  mandates this SEIS but it doesn't say before the

         13  alienation. This will be done after.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Actually, the way

         15  that it's worded is that, we have more power in the

         16  City Council now due to the C bill, in terms of

         17  ratification and in terms of the actual mandating of

         18  the bylaw for the SEIS, and if that Department does

         19  not -- this only allows, for instance, if this gets

         20  approved, all this does is allow for Van Cortlandt

         21  Park to continue to be an option, which means they

         22  still would look at the Harlem River site, and still

         23  would look at the Westchester site, and they would

         24  perform the EIS, and if they don't perform the EIS,

         25  as mandated by law, as is currently written mandated
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          2  by law, that they would not be able to utilize the

          3  site.

          4                 MS. FARINA: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.

          6                 MS. FARINA: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we have Jane

          8  Sokolow, from the Friends of Van Cortlandt Park.

          9                 Thank you very much, Jane.

         10                 MS. SOKOLOW: Thank you for the

         11  opportunity to speak. At the risk of telling you

         12  you're wrong --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: That's all right.

         14                 MS. SOKOLOW: According to the EPA,

         15  the City has paid no fines. No fines. They may be

         16  accruing, but the City has not paid any fines yet.

         17  And the reason that they're going to pay the fines

         18  has nothing to do with this bill or with alienating

         19  the parkland.

         20                 Under the consent decree they had to

         21  choose the preferred site by the 30th of April. They

         22  only had two sites to choose from, Westchester and

         23  the Harlem River, and they did not choose a site.

         24                 So, I just want to make it clear to

         25  the Council that it is not the fault of those of us
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          2  in the community who do not want this in Van

          3  Cortlandt Park if the City gets fined. That is DEP's

          4  problem.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Just on their

          6  defense, on April 15th the Mayor did send a

          7  resolution up to the State Legislature for the Van

          8  Cortlandt site, and to try to get some litigation

          9  and try to get some more extended time frame.

         10                 In reference to the fines, there are

         11  conflicting information onto that, and we do have

         12  knowledge of $100,000 worth of fines due to the fact

         13  that we did not meet the April 30th deadline. And

         14  that has already been reported in the papers.

         15                 MS. SOKOLOW: I understand that. We

         16  have someone in EPA that we speak to almost daily,

         17  and according to him, no fines. Now, he could be not

         18  telling us the truth.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Well, not that

         20  anybody would lie about it, I think it just might be

         21  confliction information.

         22                 MS. SOKOLOW: I also did not get a

         23  chance to see version C, but I'd just like to

         24  address a few of the comments that were made today.

         25  The first of which is that previous construction
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          2  projects in parks are nothing like what this

          3  construction project is going to be like. The

          4  subways ran under the parks, there were very little

          5  above-ground excavation. The same was true with most

          6  of the water tunnel.

          7                 We're talking about an open-pit mine

          8  for six years in Van Cortlandt Park before this

          9  thing ends up underground.

         10                 We're also talking about something

         11  that's going to have a guard booth and an

         12  entranceway. You don't see that with the subways,

         13  you don't see it with the Third Water Tunnel. So,

         14  it's a very different kind of construction. I just

         15  wanted to make that clear.

         16                 I'd also like to comment a little bit

         17  about Commissioner Ward who now has agreed to do an

         18  SEIS, which he was absolutely adamant against doing.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: You're welcome.

         20                 MS. SOKOLOW: Thank you very much.

         21                 But I feel very strongly that you

         22  should demand to have a ULURP for the alienation.

         23                 I don't think that a Mayoral override

         24  for zoning has ever been done before, and I think,

         25  if you don't mind my suggesting it, disregarding the
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          2  zoning laws that are there to protect parkland, and

          3  that the City Council is supposed to have a final

          4  decision over. So, I urge you to make it mandatory

          5  that they have to ULURP, do a ULURP. I just don't

          6  think a mayoral override is something we want to set

          7  precedence for.

          8                 And I also think that, everybody

          9  talks about the great legacy all this money is going

         10  to leave for Bronx parks. I don't think it's such a

         11  great legacy when it's at the expense of parkland

         12  that has been held in public trust. I just don't

         13  think it's much of a legacy. I've heard it equated

         14  to Robert Moses. Well, thank you Robert Moses,

         15  because of you we have roads through all of our

         16  parks in the Bronx. So, I don't think it's a great

         17  legacy.

         18                 And the last thing I'd like to say

         19  is, I'd like you to think long and hard, if this

         20  project had been proposed for Central Park, would

         21  you be so quick to send a Home Rule to Albany?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: If I may, Jane.

         23  So, you're not favorable for the $200 million? So,

         24  we just take the $200 million off the table and Van

         25  Cortlandt gets chosen anyway?
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          2                 MS. SOKOLOW: No, I'm not saying that.

          3  I'm saying it's blood money.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: If it does happen

          5  in Van Cortlandt Park, I think that the $43 million

          6  in mitigation money, as well as the $200 million

          7  coming, and which a portion of that will be provided

          8  to Van Cortlandt site, is something that at least is

          9  beneficial, at a time when in this current fiscal

         10  year we're only getting for the Borough of the Bronx

         11  $5 million for parks improvements.

         12                 MS. SOKOLOW: I understand that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And $243 million

         14  for parks improvements in a Borough that's been

         15  depressed and been neglected for so many years would

         16  be an outstanding victory if this site will be

         17  chosen.

         18                 So, if you're telling me to take that

         19  off the table --

         20                 MS. SOKOLOW: I'm not telling you to

         21  take that off the table. I'm just saying that I

         22  think it's ransom money, and I think there are

         23  alternative sites for this filtration plant.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: The alternative

         25  sites will still be looked at.
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          2                 MS. SOKOLOW: Right, that's not

          3  exactly clear, and I think someone is going to

          4  address that a little bit later.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: The Supplemental

          6  Environmental Impact Study would have to be, all the

          7  sites would have to be looked at, and only provides

          8  for this to still be an option. They would still

          9  look at the Westchester site, they would still look

         10  at the Harlem River site.

         11                 MS. SOKOLOW: I don't think, according

         12  to conversations that we have had with Commissioner

         13  Ward, that they're going to take a very hard look at

         14  those other two sites.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Well, the SEIS --

         16                 MS. SOKOLOW: I understand that. You

         17  know, I think that ought to be completed first along

         18  with the ULURP before the park gets alienated.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Just for a point

         20  of clarification, if we did that beforehand, we

         21  would not actually be done, the Mosholu site would

         22  not be utilized, due to the fact that the courts are

         23  pretty much at this point in time, in our view, for

         24  lack of a better word, fed up with the process, and

         25  they do not have faith that the legislature, meaning
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          2  us and the State, would move on the Van Cortlandt

          3  site, and therefore would only mandate that they do

          4  it in Westchester and the Harlem River, and if that

          5  was the two only options, the most likely site

          6  would, probably be, once they finished the process

          7  or whatever the case may be, and if they continue to

          8  follow the same precedent that they followed that

          9  Westchester is much more expensive than Harlem

         10  River, it would then be in the Harlem River site and

         11  above grade and all those negative aspects.

         12                 So, you actually, pretty much under

         13  what we've already heard from DEP, forced it to be

         14  still in the Bronx and be above grade in a very

         15  detrimental location also.

         16                 MS. SOKOLOW: Well, the truth of the

         17  matter is that the Commissioner has not addressed

         18  this. We went to the Commissioner and we were

         19  perfectly willing to intervene with the parties of

         20  the consent decree to ask them not to fine and to

         21  allow the SEIS and the ULURP process to go forward

         22  before alienation. We were willing to ask for an

         23  extension on this, and the Commissioner was not

         24  willing, quote, and I quote, to take that chance.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, thank you.
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          2                 MS. SOKOLOW: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we will hear

          4  from Frank McArdle from the General Contractors

          5  Association of New York.

          6                 MR. McARDLE: Thank you very much. My

          7  name is Frank McArdle. I'm here today representing

          8  the General Contractors Association. I would urge

          9  you to in fact send to Albany a Home Rule Message on

         10  the C version. I think the commitment to the SEIS

         11  will in fact at the end of the day answer all of the

         12  questions that have been raised, and I believe that

         13  the Van Cortlandt Park site will be found as we

         14  believe now to be the most appropriate site at which

         15  to locate this facility. The most appropriate from

         16  the point of view of its economic impact on the City

         17  of New York.

         18                 The question of filtration is,

         19  unfortunately, not an open one. The City of New York

         20  did not file the waiver necessary with the EPA when

         21  the waiver window was open, and there seems no

         22  willingness on the part of either USEPA or the

         23  United States Congress to in fact reopen that waiver

         24  window.

         25                 We spent every effort made to open
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          2  that window, but that window was closed.

          3                 Perhaps some time in the future that

          4  window could be reopened, but at this point the

          5  window is closed, and so it is important that the

          6  City proceed to stay in compliance with the consent

          7  decree and in fact proceed.

          8                 This legislation, giving the

          9  Commissioner the options of three sites from which

         10  to pick, in fact preserves that option, puts the

         11  control of the consent decree in the hands of the

         12  City of New York, not in the hands of others.

         13                 I would agree with the Commissioner

         14  that you would not want to take that chance. As when

         15  I was Commissioner, I did not take similar chances

         16  in other circumstances. You want to stay in control

         17  of your own destiny.

         18                 The question has been raised by

         19  Councilman Koppell about jobs. There is no way that

         20  you can assure every job goes to someone in the

         21  Bronx. You would find yourselves perhaps with the

         22  votes of all of your members from the Bronx in

         23  support of such a resolution, perhaps all of those

         24  who have construction workers within their

         25  districts, from Queens or Manhattan or what have
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          2  you, perhaps would not see that kind of circumstance

          3  as appropriate. What we have said and will continue

          4  to say, is that every effort will be made to assure

          5  that there is an effective job creation program for

          6  the Bronx. That means working with the school system

          7  in the Bronx, in particular with Smith High School,

          8  to develop the preapprenticeship development

          9  programs that in fact will point people towards

         10  employment in the construction industry in New York

         11  City.

         12                 I was at their most career day, and

         13  watched how students came and looked at the choices

         14  they had before them, is their choice to go to the

         15  military, is it to go to one of the very fine

         16  schools of higher education, is it to go to the

         17  construction industry, and the construction industry

         18  in the trades were all represented there. We think

         19  we can build a very strong relationship with that

         20  school and other schools in the Bronx to describe

         21  what it means to be in our construction industry.

         22                 The one thing we can never guarantee,

         23  nor can you, is that people, even if they start in

         24  the Bronx, stay in the Bronx. You don't do that for

         25  many people employed by the City of New York because
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          2  you recognize that police officers, while they will

          3  stay within the City, when they are first appointed,

          4  will often move elsewhere, because they cannot find

          5  what they need in the City of New York.

          6                 We want to see in fact those jobs

          7  stay here, but then we want to create that quality

          8  of life that in fact will keep them there. And

          9  that's where we see the investment program that's

         10  offered, the $200 million.  We can see it in the

         11  investment being made now in other places within Van

         12  Cortlandt Park. Parks are essential to people's

         13  quality of life. People want those parks for all

         14  kinds of recreational opportunities. That's what

         15  this program will provide. But we are committed to

         16  maximizing the job creation opportunities for people

         17  in the Bronx, because the construction industry is

         18  at a point in time in which the age distribution

         19  suggests that many people will be retiring,

         20  particularly after the last few years, extraordinary

         21  over time, particularly that connected with the

         22  events of September 11th. We have opportunities to

         23  find new members within the Bronx, and that's what

         24  we're committed to doing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Real quick. We're
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          2  talking about the jobs here, that's a very important

          3  issue here, if this doesn't get done. For example,

          4  if the Westchester site gets chosen, is there any

          5  way that City people can get jobs? And if so, how

          6  many City union members or employees would actually

          7  get jobs up in Westchester? Is there any way we can

          8  structure it, so that they get jobs?

          9                 MR. McARDLE: We have a couple of

         10  construction labor leaders here who can speak to

         11  this issue. But I point out to you that they, like

         12  you, share the common characteristic, they are

         13  elected, as are their counterparts in Westchester,

         14  and if you're running for office in the Bronx,

         15  promising that jobs will go to people in

         16  Westchester, people might not think well of you.

         17  Consider that same phenomenon, if you're in the

         18  Bronx, you know, and you're there saying just when

         19  you're running for office, and they run for election

         20  every three years in most cases, you know, go out

         21  there and say you're not fully committed to have all

         22  these jobs come from among your members, they're

         23  going to say I don't think so.

         24                 Because this is electoral politics,

         25  people do run, they do have issues, and one of their
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          2  concerns, and it's a concern in Westchester, as much

          3  as it is a concern in here, is to in fact create

          4  jobs for people.

          5                 One of the reasons, quite frankly,

          6  that it is important to keep this project in the

          7  City is because it does allow us to create jobs and

          8  to create apprenticeship opportunities here, not

          9  apprenticeship opportunities that will go to people

         10  in Westchester.

         11                 There are people in New Rochelle,

         12  there are people in many parts of Westchester,

         13  Yonkers and the like, that want those apprenticeship

         14  opportunities. They want to line up for those jobs,

         15  and they'd like to work close to home. They would

         16  prefer to be in Westchester. And, so, they're going

         17  to say keep those jobs for us. We want to see those

         18  jobs kept in the City of New York.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: So it would be

         20  less likely to have City employees, obviously --

         21                 MR. McARDLE: Quite frankly, if you go

         22  to Westchester, the recruitment will be from the

         23  locals in Westchester, and I dare say most of their

         24  members find themselves living, if they live outside

         25  of Westchester, not in the City of New York, in the
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          2  main, but in Rockland County.

          3                 Quite frankly, if you talk to the

          4  people who run the Tapanzee Bridge, the largest

          5  flows of people across that bridge in the morning

          6  into Westchester in New York City comes three groups

          7  of people, they come from the teachers, who teach in

          8  the schools in Westchester; they come from the

          9  nurses who staff our hospitals; and they come from

         10  the construction workers.

         11                 The more we can keep the jobs here,

         12  three-quarters of the workers within the building

         13  trades coming as they do from the City of New York,

         14  the more chance we have to build those stable

         15  communities in the Bronx. But we need to do, not

         16  simply provide them with a job, because you give

         17  them a job and an income, particularly these jobs

         18  and income, you want to also create the reason for

         19  them to stay in the Bronx. That means they have the

         20  parks and the schools and the communities that they

         21  find comfortable and holding as they would if they

         22  went anywhere else. That's what we need to do as

         23  well. That's what this program does, because it's

         24  not just jobs, it's also an investment in very

         25  important facilities to people's quality of life.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Oliver.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: In the last

          4  hearing, and I don't remember who it was anymore,

          5  but several people talked about project labor

          6  agreements which could guarantee at least City

          7  employees, and I'm not sure we want to be all that

          8  parochial as saying Bronx simply, but City

          9  employees; are you familiar with project labor

         10  agreements that require City employees?

         11                 MR. McARDLE: I am very much familiar

         12  with project labor agreements. You would probably

         13  not within something that's really technically a

         14  project labor agreement want to talk about

         15  employment limitations, but you find in the Bronx

         16  Courthouse project labor agreements, it's really

         17  more of a partnering agreement, but I don't want to

         18  parse language either, a commitment that 35 percent

         19  of the jobs went back, best efforts go to people in

         20  the Bronx.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And that's an

         22  agreement between the City and who?

         23                 MR. McARDLE: Actually it's the

         24  Dormitory Authority, through their construction

         25  manager and the Building and Construction Trade
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          2  Council.

          3                 What we're looking to do here, is to

          4  craft a broader structure, that would involve both

          5  community people, contractor people and the Building

          6  and Construction Trades to examine every contract,

          7  to look at who is going to work on those contracts,

          8  what the opportunities are. Because in many cases,

          9  it's not about a job today, it is actually about

         10  going into the middle schools, to in fact encourage

         11  kids to go forward so in fact at the end of this

         12  process people are as oriented to this as well.

         13                 I'll give you one example when we

         14  have Bob Shaw here from the Operating Engineers and

         15  Tom Maguire. Bob Shaw heads the surveyors Local 15D.

         16  We always are looking for very smart kids to follow

         17  the surveying trade. Why? Because they are the

         18  people who are very important to the job and

         19  requires a lot of math skills, we want people to

         20  have those good math skills, even with all the

         21  instruments, you've got to understand what they're

         22  doing. But much more significantly, when you look at

         23  who gets promoted, who's running the jobs, the

         24  Assistant Superintendents and the Superintendents on

         25  projects across this City of New York, 80 percent of
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          2  them started as surveyors, not just because they've

          3  got the good math skills, but they're on the job

          4  from day one to day end laying it out.

          5                 The more girls and boys in

          6  intermediate schools that we can encourage to do the

          7  maths, so that when they get into the high schools,

          8  they keep the maths and then think about this trade,

          9  the better off we all are.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I think we're

         11  talking about sort of apples and oranges here. I

         12  mean, I'm all in favor of what you're talking about

         13  the unions doing that, but we're talking about jobs

         14  on a particular site.

         15                 MR. McARDLE: Exactly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Presumably

         17  construction on this site would start, I would

         18  guess, in 2004, and would go for maybe five or six

         19  years, so from 2004 to 2009 or 2010.

         20                 MR. McARDLE: Exactly.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I mean, we're

         22  talking about jobs pretty soon, we're not talking

         23  about high school kids, maybe some of them would

         24  eventually get the jobs, but we're talking about the

         25  jobs that are going to be available soon.
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          2                 MR. McARDLE: That's my point.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I want to be

          4  sure that the jobs are available soon, that many

          5  people from the Bronx, which is what we've been told

          6  all along, that they will in fact be employed at Van

          7  Cortlandt Park, if that's the site.

          8                 MR. McARDLE: That's exactly the

          9  point.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: How are we

         11  going to assure that?

         12                 MR. McARDLE: You can assure it two

         13  ways: You can assure it by good planning, and you

         14  can assure it by a program that in fact makes a best

         15  effort to in fact do that.

         16                 One of the issues you have to face,

         17  the reality of this world is, that in New York City,

         18  particularly on this project, because it's a heavy

         19  construction project, you're basically going to have

         20  a handful of trades involved early on and through

         21  this process. Electricians, plumbers, the HVAC

         22  trades, and the heavy trades. We negotiate with 14

         23  different locals.

         24                 The company that wins this first bid,

         25  is going to have within their world a set of people
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          2  with whom they start the job, they're supers, all

          3  right?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Right.

          5                 MR. McARDLE: They're then going to be

          6  recruiting people, and they're going to go out and

          7  try to find the best people to do their job.

          8                 Now, you're going to have the best

          9  people already in the Bronx. If they're not working

         10  for that company, they'll be working for another

         11  company, and somebody who has been a best person

         12  working for Tully Construction, for example, for

         13  many years, because they were working over there on

         14  the Sheridan Expressway job, they're going to think

         15  before they give that job up with Tully because they

         16  move with Tully from borough-to-borough to go to

         17  this job. But we're going to make every effort to

         18  make sure everybody knows this job is there, and

         19  then having moved beyond to work with the community,

         20  to identify people who can fill the jobs that are

         21  needed on this site, because not every job can be

         22  filled by somebody who is now within the building

         23  trade. Not at the levels we have of employment.

         24                 While we have 12,000 people out of

         25  work, those 12,000 people may not be in the trades
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          2  that we need on this project, and if you need to

          3  have kind of a reassurance of how this process

          4  works, don't talk to me, go talk to Assemblyman

          5  Keith Wright down in Harlem. Major project done in

          6  Central Harlem, the Lenox Avenue line, anybody who

          7  rode the number two train may remember that little

          8  nightmare of the number two and which way you went

          9  back and forth to the Bronx. That was $120 million

         10  project, done in Central Harlem 116th and Lenox

         11  Avenue, and the contractor that did that job set the

         12  model for what you do. He went there with

         13  Assemblyman Wright, they held a job fair for the

         14  jobs they needed, they had 3,000 people line up to

         15  make application for the jobs they would need,

         16  people from that community. That's what you do to

         17  put people to work.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: How do we

         19  have a guarantee that we're going to do that at Van

         20  Cortlandt?

         21                 Sounds good. How do we have a

         22  guarantee that that's going to be done at this site

         23  if this is where the project is going to be?

         24                 Sounds good to me that you have a

         25  local job fare and you're going to hire people from
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          2  in the local areas.

          3                 MR. McARDLE: That's just one tool.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, I

          5  understand. But how do we guarantee that that's

          6  going to happen?

          7                 MR. McARDLE: My understanding is that

          8  there will be some reference to this in the MOU.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, that's

         10  an improvement.

         11                 MR. McARDLE: We have made proposals

         12  to the City that they incorporate in the MOU and

         13  advisory committee to address these very issues of

         14  employment and purchasing, to try to maximize the

         15  Bronx content of purchasing, and that doesn't mean

         16  just ordering through the local home depot, but

         17  really in fact seeing what you can do to maximize

         18  employment in other industries in the Bronx, not

         19  just on the construction site itself.

         20                 How do you work on safety issues and

         21  health issues with Montefiore Hospital? I mean,

         22  health and safety on job sites is critical. How do

         23  you work with Montefiore to in fact expedite those

         24  kinds of things?

         25                 How do you in fact work with a
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          2  variety of different vendors within the Bronx to

          3  keep as many of these dollars circulating in the

          4  Bronx economy?

          5                 Again, you don't have to take my

          6  word. Go talk to Assemblyman Wright about the job

          7  that was done there, which is the last major project

          8  that I can use as an analogy.

          9                 You want to look at another project,

         10  you want to talk about Commissioner Ward's

         11  credibility, then I'd ask you to go out and take a

         12  look at what happened on the airtrain project.

         13                 Now, the City of New York is not the

         14  Port Authority and perhaps doesn't have quite the

         15  flexibilities that the Port Authority had, but if

         16  you look at what was achieved on the airtrain, in

         17  terms of local content on employment and local

         18  content on business development, I think everyone

         19  within that Southeast Queens community today, feels

         20  that that was a project that was a win for that

         21  community.

         22                 They didn't think that before the

         23  project started, but I think they believe that

         24  today. That's what we see as coming available in the

         25  Bronx.
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          2                 As I said, we're as interested in the

          3  jobs today, but we are equally interested in making

          4  sure that kids understand what this business can be

          5  for them as a career going forward. That's an

          6  education that needs to be done, and we're prepared

          7  to do that with the schools.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

          9  I just would point out that the legislation doesn't

         10  suggest that that be part of the MOU, but I think

         11  it's a good idea that was just advanced, and I think

         12  we should keep that in mind, because the MOU will be

         13  subject to City Council approval.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: For your own

         15  clarification, if we do not approve of what the MOU

         16  states --

         17                 MR. McARDLE: It doesn't happen.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: It wouldn't

         19  happen.

         20                 MR. McARDLE: What you're doing now is

         21  giving the Department some flexibility, but the MOU

         22  comes back to you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

         24                 MR. McARDLE: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Next we will hear
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          2  from Elizabeth Cooke, from the Friends of Van

          3  Cortlandt Park.

          4                 MS. COOKE: Good afternoon.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          6  much for coming here to testify.

          7                 MS. COOKE: And thank you for this

          8  opportunity to speak on this issue again.

          9                 I've come before you, I'm sorry if

         10  the gentlemen are going to leave. It's unfortunate.

         11  Are you going to be able to stay?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm just

         13  shutting the door.

         14                 MS. COOKE: I've often come before you

         15  to say that we are opposed to passing this bill. I

         16  would like to speak today in an affirmative way.

         17  Let's say of what I would be in favor of, what we

         18  full support, and what I'm about to say is something

         19  we have said, meaning the two organizations that

         20  brought the lawsuit in 1998/1999. It was the Parks

         21  Council, they are now called New Yorkers for Parks,

         22  and the other group was Friends of Van Cortlandt

         23  Park.

         24                 We have proposed the following to

         25  Commissioner Ward, and though that it would have
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          2  been a way to address the concerns of some of the

          3  people that we have found ourselves polarized with;

          4  that is, that all of the parties who are concerned

          5  with this petition the Federal Court, and ask that

          6  the park be allowed to remain as one of the three

          7  options under consideration in an EIS.

          8                 The only reason to rush this

          9  legislation through now is so that the federal

         10  consent decree regulators don't remove the park as

         11  one of the options to be considered.

         12                 So, if the City could keep the park

         13  in the mix, if we had three sites going through an

         14  EIS, equally being considered, the Harlem site, the

         15  Park site, and the Westchester site, that is the

         16  process where parks advocates should be making their

         17  strongest claim that we shouldn't take parkland for

         18  a project like this. And the reason that there is so

         19  much pressure and counter pressure right now in the

         20  Speaker of the Assembly and the Speaker of the

         21  Council and the Council, is because we've been

         22  denied that process where this debate would normally

         23  take place.

         24                 So, if we have a true EIS process,

         25  public advocates and park advocates and
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          2  environmental advocates achieve a couple of things

          3  that are really important to us:

          4                 One, we'll have documents on what the

          5  City proposes to build.

          6                 Number two, let's assume that

          7  everything DEP has said about why the Park is the

          8  better choice is absolutely correct and true. We

          9  will see it. We will have documents that line up

         10  site A, site B and site C, and we, the Park

         11  advocates, will make our best attempt at that point

         12  to convince the public legislators not to take

         13  parkland, to see if there is another site, and maybe

         14  there is another site between A, B, C and D. In

         15  fact, I'm not one of the proponents of no

         16  filtration. I have no expertise in this area, but

         17  actually under the federal rules no filtration will

         18  also be an option and those people will make their

         19  arguments there then.

         20                 At the end of the EIS process a

         21  decision will be made, and that can happen by the

         22  end of the year.

         23                 I hope that Van Cortlandt isn't

         24  chosen as the President of Friends of Van Cortlandt

         25  Park. But if it is, and I understand that that's
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          2  very possible, if it is then we are going to insist

          3  that the City follow proper alienation of that

          4  parkland. It's really important to us. Not just

          5  because we want Van Cortlandt Park to get its

          6  rightful process, but that is what protects other

          7  parks from a fast track, political deal, grabbing

          8  parkland from municipal facilities. That's the

          9  reason so many of us are committed to this.

         10                 And that is where a mitigation

         11  package will be chosen. I don't want to discuss

         12  mitigation here today, it's not the right time and

         13  place. The community, I'm also not the person to

         14  speak -- I don't live right there, so I'm not the

         15  person to talk about the local community so much,

         16  but the local community has never been engaged in a

         17  public process where their needs and the effect on

         18  them if the construction is right there has ever

         19  been discussed, and that is the process where it

         20  should happen. It should happen with an EIS, and as

         21  the land is proper alienated to the City, and I

         22  don't think money would disappear at that point,

         23  would happen or not happen, if that is the cheaper

         24  site, if that site is cheaper by hundreds of

         25  millions of dollars, then DEP can still generate a

                                                            104

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  couple hundred million dollars to get that site

          3  because it's cheaper. It's still cheaper than going

          4  other places, and the community will have a public

          5  opportunity to comment. That is the process.

          6                 So, we are still asking that this

          7  bill not be passed now. We're volunteering to

          8  support that the Park be kept as part of the process

          9  to the Federal Courts. We ask that the bill be held

         10  off, if the Park is chosen, if the land is properly

         11  ULURP'd, at that point the bill would be passed in

         12  Albany, and at that point we wouldn't oppose it. We

         13  would have no more legal process through which to

         14  oppose it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: The Assembly is

         16  ending session in nine days.

         17                 MS. COOKE: No, I understand this

         18  would mean that we would actually hold the bill off

         19  until the next session in 2004.

         20                 Also, there is a sense from the City

         21  that this is an urgent, urgent thing. We don't

         22  believe that that's true.

         23                 The plant has to be built by 2011.

         24  The engineering and the contracts have to be let by

         25  2005. There is enough time between now and next
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          2  spring to do the EIS, to do the ULURP and get the

          3  bill passed in Albany next January or February if

          4  the Park is -- the State should be proving the end

          5  of the process. The State shouldn't be preapproving

          6  -- well, let me state it another way: If the bill

          7  is passed, the State will have approved the

          8  alienation of 42 acres of Van Cortlandt Park.

          9  Alienation means the control of the land goes from

         10  Parks to DEP, and we're going to be giving 42 acres

         11  of land from Parks to DEP, just in case they need it

         12  at the end of a process that hasn't happened yet.

         13                 We're saying that should be a last

         14  step, after the decisions are made, not a

         15  preliminary step.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We hear you. The

         17  only problem that we really do face is that we don't

         18  have a firm commitment that if the Legislature

         19  departs, that we don't have a firm commitment from

         20  EPA, nor an even loose commitment, that it would

         21  still be able to be utilized as a site, and it would

         22  be really taking an option off of the table.

         23                 MS. COOKE: Yes, we have offered to

         24  actually support that. We believe that if all of the

         25  parties concerned went and offered to support that

                                                            106

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  the Park be kept on the table -- let me say it in

          3  another way.

          4                 Although the federal consent decree

          5  regulators have a certain set of requirements, they

          6  have given exceptions to those requirements over and

          7  over and over again, almost every time the City has

          8  asked for an exception they have been granted one,

          9  and we believe that if those who brought the suit

         10  the last time, we're the people who brought the suit

         11  the last time, and if this bill is passed

         12  prematurely, and the City isn't properly alienated,

         13  we're seriously considering bringing a suit again. I

         14  think it would actually happen faster. Even if it

         15  ends up in Van Cortlandt Park, it really matters to

         16  us whether the law is followed, because that's the

         17  process that would protect other parks in the future

         18  from what we think is a new kind of fast track and

         19  not process grounded decision.

         20                 We really need to see the documents.

         21  We really need to have that. If it's going to be

         22  built in the Park and I've said this before, I don't

         23  want to keep repeating myself, but I'm going to go

         24  back to this: The only thing that we have from DEP

         25  are these view graphs, and they are completely
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          2  inconsistent with the legislation.  The view graph

          3  says they're going to take 23 acres, the legislation

          4  says they're going to permanently alienate 42 acres.

          5  The legislation doesn't say anything about restoring

          6  the land of overhead. Although everyone comes before

          7  us and verbally says we're going to restore it,

          8  we're going to restore it. It isn't written anywhere

          9  that gives us any guarantee of the legislation says

         10  they're going to alienate 42 acres, and that without

         11  limitation they can build on it, and it says nothing

         12  about restoring it in the legislation.

         13                 You'll see on line seven it says that

         14  without limitation, filtration facility da da da da,

         15  and it says section 3, that this acres is going to

         16  be permanently alienated and it says nothing about

         17  restoring section 3. It says they will restore

         18  section 4, and under section 4, and the land

         19  described under section 4 is 4.7 acres, and the land

         20  prominently alienated where there's nothing stated

         21  about restoration is 42 acres, and that is not

         22  consistent with the public presentation. I said this

         23  before. And the new bill doesn't address that in any

         24  way.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: But doesn't the
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          2  SEIS help in the public process because they will

          3  have public hearings in the communities that would

          4  be affected and therefore the people would be able

          5  to get knowledge on what would actually be taking

          6  place on the site?

          7                 From my understanding, that was a

          8  major issue due to the fact that that would open up

          9  the process more and give you a clear understanding

         10  of what would actually be developed, as opposed to

         11  not having an SEIS.

         12                 MS. COOKE: In other to get a bill

         13  passed now quickly, packages are being negotiated

         14  with people who will vote on the bill and they will

         15  ultimately negotiate what we're calling mitigation

         16  and they'll ultimately control how that mitigation

         17  is spent.

         18                 If the bill isn't passed now, and

         19  there is a community process where there are public

         20  documents, and let's say for the sake of a

         21  conversation the Harlem River site is really

         22  seriously considerate, then a mitigation package

         23  will be negotiated as it affects that site involving

         24  the people who live nearby, and if the Park is the

         25  main site, a mitigation package will be negotiated
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          2  with the input of the people who live nearby.

          3                 The way it's being done right now,

          4  the people who live nearby aren't being consulted.

          5  The people whose votes are needed in Albany and the

          6  City Council are being discussed. It's a completely

          7  different dynamic, period, and we don't have

          8  documents.

          9                 I guess I go back to that. We don't

         10  have documents of what's going to be built. If this

         11  is approved now and we don't have documents, and in

         12  fact I don't want to get into arguments or

         13  disagreements but Mr. Maguire said the Third Water

         14  Tunnel was built and there were no problems. The

         15  people who live there have a very different

         16  experience. The Third Water Tunnel was supposed to

         17  be a single shaft, was supposed to be less than a

         18  couple of acres, it was supposed to be a couple of

         19  years of construction. It ended up being 11 years.

         20  It ended up not being restored for over 20 years,

         21  and the local people didn't get the park back. So,

         22  your description of what's happened in the past and

         23  our actual experience of it is just very different.

         24  And there hasn't been enough faith and goodwill for

         25  people to accept a word here in time in the Year
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          2  2003, and expect that six years from now and eight

          3  years from now, that, what, we're going to come back

          4  to this testimony and be able to hold the City to

          5  what's being said in this testimony.

          6                 We should have real documents. That's

          7  not an unreasonable request.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

          9                 MS. COOKE: I also want to say, I'd

         10  love to see the jobs in New York. We get polarized

         11  in a way that I think is unfair. It says if either

         12  you're against filtration or you agree to build it

         13  in the park right now illegally. Well, I have no

         14  expertise on whether we need filtration. I'm not

         15  opposing it. But the only option isn't to build it

         16  in the Park, and I'd love to see the jobs in New

         17  York City, and I'd love to see the taxes in New York

         18  City. I'm not opposed to that. I mean we're not

         19  unthinking (sic) on those issues. So, thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you,

         21  Elizabeth.

         22                 Now we'll hear from Fred LeMoine from

         23  Metallic Lathers and Reinforcing Ironworkers, Local

         24  47.

         25                 MR. LeMOINE: Good afternoon, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. Mr. Koppell. My name is Fred LeMoine. I'm

          3  a Business Agent for Local 46, the Metallic Lathers

          4  and Reinforcing Ironworkers Union. We are an

          5  affiliate of the New York District Council of

          6  Ironworkers, which represents over 6,500 members in

          7  the New York City area.

          8                 I am also a Vice President of the

          9  Bronx Board of Agents, which has a lot more members.

         10  Our citizens deserve to have safe, clean water. The

         11  DEP has stated that in order to ensure that, we need

         12  to filter it.

         13                 Our citizens also deserve their

         14  earned decent wages and benefits and the New York

         15  City Building Trades Unions provide the best wages

         16  and benefits for New York City construction workers.

         17                 The residents of the area that

         18  surround the proposed sites, they deserve to have

         19  their concerns addressed, and I hope that the new C

         20  version of Bill 8069, with the SEIS, puts some of

         21  these concerns to rest.

         22                 I want to say that I support using

         23  Bronx residents, as well as other City residents to

         24  build this important project in the Bronx, and that

         25  it can be arranged to ensure that certain
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          2  percentages do come from the Bronx that work on this

          3  project.

          4                 As stated before, the Dormitory

          5  Authority of the State of New York has it in the

          6  contracts with the Bronx Criminal Court House that

          7  35 percent of the employees on that project have to

          8  come from the Bronx. We could have similar language

          9  put into these contracts, as well as the contracts

         10  for the park improvements.

         11                 Also, I've been privy, I've

         12  participated in a few negotiations where these

         13  percentages were put into contracts, and sometimes

         14  there are things put in there like 25, 30 percent of

         15  the money has to be spent in the area, and I want to

         16  again warn you and ask for your help also in that

         17  just simply saying 25, 30 percent of the money will

         18  be spent in the Bronx is not adequate enough

         19  language, because there are unscrupulous people that

         20  will set up a Post Office Box, or they'll set up a

         21  storefront and say that they are Bronx residents or

         22  Bronx business when really the fact is they're not.

         23                 So, we're not looking to have that

         24  happen. As one of the leaders within the Building

         25  Trades Union, I'm looking to work hand-in-hand with
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          2  you, and I do support this going in the MOU, that is

          3  a way that we can do it, and again, I want to thank

          4  you for having these hearings and will look forward

          5  to seeing you again. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

          7                 Next we'll hear from David Ferguson,

          8  HDFC Council/ CWCWC. Thank you very much, David.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON: Thank you. My pleasure.

         10  Thank you for having this hearing.

         11                 I do have a few comments on what I've

         12  heard so far this afternoon. The issue of the money

         13  for the parks, the 200 million, or 243 million,

         14  about a quarter of a billion dollars, that money

         15  doesn't come from some mysterious place, that comes

         16  from water ratepayers. And our group, the HDFC

         17  Council, pays water rates. That's how I got involved

         18  in this some nine years ago, and we formed a group

         19  and seven years I've been working on this issue,

         20  because I can't walk away from it because it's just

         21  too important. I'd love to be able to, but I can't.

         22  And we pay water rates, and those water rates have

         23  gone up. They went up about 300 percent in about 15

         24  years, somewhere back there, and they're still going

         25  up at a great rate. The last increase is 5.5
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          2  percent. It was negotiated down by the Council from

          3  6.5. But that's just the beginning, because the

          4  capital budget has gone up to $16.5 billion, that's

          5  an $8.6 billion increase, and that isn't even

          6  reflected yet. That's going to be a really big

          7  number, and the only way you can cut that down is by

          8  this filtration plant that we don't need. This

          9  billion and a half dollars, plus the cost, 100

         10  million or whatever a year to run.

         11                 And, so, because one of the things

         12  that in that $16.5 billion, that we have been

         13  supporting for all these years, previous Comptroller

         14  Hevesi made a report on the infrastructure of the

         15  City in general and in terms of just the water

         16  system, we were $4.5 billion short in keeping our

         17  pipes in a state of good repair, that's all. So, now

         18  that money, now the Commissioner is actually going

         19  after the distribution system, and many of these

         20  color problems in the water are connected with the

         21  distribution system, and if you remove that problem,

         22  why spend a billion and a half dollars for a plant

         23  you don't need, because that's the only problem we

         24  really have on the boards now from the state as

         25  color and odor.
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          2                 Now, apart from that, this money,

          3  this $200 million, a quarter of a billion with the

          4  45, and how that's all going to be dispersed, I, as

          5  a citizen of another borough, who represent people

          6  in a lot of other boroughs, and who is a member of a

          7  group, the Croton Watershed Clean Water Coalition,

          8  where we made a presentation at the Queens Civic

          9  Congress just a few weeks ago, and the person from

         10  the parks group spoke of how their parks were going

         11  down the tubes, and their budgets are being cut to

         12  nothing down below the bone to the marrow, and

         13  suddenly all the ratepayers and all these other

         14  boroughs are going to have to subsidize the parks in

         15  the Bronx to drive the people in the Bronx so they

         16  will buy into this plan in their park.

         17                 Now, you tell me that's a good deal.

         18  You tell me that's a win/win situation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: If the Bronx for

         20  the past eight years received by far less capital

         21  funding for parks, than any other borough, then,

         22  yes, I think it's about time the Borough of the

         23  Bronx do receive its fair share from the City's

         24  budget.

         25                 If we look at the record per capita,
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          2  you will see that other areas, such as Manhattan,

          3  such as Queens, Staten Island and Brooklyn have

          4  received far substantially more funding in reference

          5  to parks capital improvements. The Bronx has been

          6  neglected for an extremely long time.

          7                 MR. FERGUSON: Do you have the figures

          8  on that?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We have. Our

         10  Financial Division can provide those allocations.

         11                 MR. FERGUSON: I would like to see

         12  those figures actually spelled out. Because I

         13  actually live in Chelsea where we have hardly any

         14  parks.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: No, I'm just

         16  talking about boroughs as a whole.

         17                 MR. FERGUSON: No, I'm just saying

         18  there are places that we don't even have the park

         19  that we're fighting for as well. Because I love that

         20  Bronx piece of that Park where all those big trees

         21  are, and we hired people to do us a drawing of this

         22  Park on the basis of DEP's figures, because all

         23  their drawings mentioned at another hearing were

         24  from the top, so you couldn't see how they would be

         25  affected by those trees being moved and all the
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          2  parking lot and all the rest of it. And it would

          3  destroy that corner where the 4 train comes and

          4  there are a lot of people, we have comic books that

          5  we put out, and you may have seen them, I don't

          6  know. We have one from the point of view of the

          7  neighbors in an area, and one of those is translated

          8  into Spanish, to let people understand what is going

          9  to happen. Because when they see it, it will be too

         10  late. They'll say oh my God, because most people

         11  don't know. Most ratepayers in the City don't

         12  realize what's going on here. A quarter of a

         13  billion.

         14                 Do you know, as it was said, that

         15  that amount of money is 24 times more money than the

         16  City put up to buy property to protect the whole

         17  Croton Watershed? That's outrageous. And they're

         18  still crying poverty on that, but they can dig this

         19  money up to bribe the other people to go around, one

         20  of your own people, Jeff Dinowitz. I find that

         21  really totally unacceptable.

         22                 Now, you can do it. Because if you

         23  have the power, you can do it. But I'll tell you,

         24  there are people out here who are keeping track and

         25  don't think it's a great idea.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Well, I would

          3  hope the people that are keeping track would also

          4  take into consideration the fact that Central Park,

          5  and all the Queens parks and all the Brooklyn parks

          6  and Staten Island parks, for the past couple of

          7  decades have received a substantial amount more

          8  funding than the Bronx. And, you know, we feel that

          9  we're entitled to our fair share, not more, but fair

         10  share.

         11                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, I would like to

         12  say --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And this has, in

         14  a year that $5 million is only being allocated to

         15  the Borough of the Bronx, and I'm pretty sure

         16  Central Park receives a considerable --

         17                 MR. FERGUSON: I would like to have a

         18  discussion with these people from other communities

         19  that have more experience with the parks in their

         20  communities, because --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I'm talking per

         22  capita, dollar-by-dollar, that the Bronx received

         23  five and others received ten. So, I mean, do you

         24  think that's fair?

         25                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, if you have a
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          2  problem with inequity in terms of the parks, then

          3  address that. But don't use it, because this

          4  filtration plant, among other things, for example --

          5  by the way, the suit against the plant the last

          6  time, the first foot in the water was Fay Muir with

          7  the Norwood community and the others came in shortly

          8  thereafter. It was toward the end of the time when

          9  we could do that. But just in passing, you know,

         10  listening earlier, I would think this was a

         11  Committee meeting on jobs programs. You know, this

         12  is a very serious decision that the City is making

         13  now.

         14                 I don't want to disturb you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Go ahead.

         16                 MR. FERGUSON: Okay. This is a very

         17  serious decision. We're interested in the public

         18  health. We are against filtration because we don't

         19  need it. We're trying to save the City a billion and

         20  a half dollars.

         21                 Frank McArdle said that the window is

         22  closed. Well, we've been talking to people at EPA in

         23  Washington, and they're interested in our

         24  alternative. And as I quote in my paper, I quote

         25  Frank McArdle, and this was a previous hearing in
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          2  '99, of course he supports the filtration plant and

          3  always has, but he did say this particular

          4  statement: "DEP should aggressively pursue the

          5  research and the watershed management practices that

          6  will satisfy DEP, at some point to offer a

          7  filtration avoidance program for the Croton system

          8  to EPA and the State."

          9                 And I would also quote from Ed Ott,

         10  representing Brian McLaughlin, President of the

         11  Central Labor Council, who said at the same hearing,

         12  "Filtration is not the best system to deal with the

         13  water. We understand that, and we accept the science

         14  that criticizes it as not the way to go." He went on

         15  to talk about "Our friends and neighbors Upstate

         16  continue to involve themselves in very poor land

         17  management." You're following that? Very poor land

         18  management? Ed Ott, who is representing -- and I've

         19  been working with the people up there for the last

         20  seven years, and Marion Rose is here and people from

         21  Westchester and Putnam have come and testified, how

         22  they are fighting every day. And I've got videos,

         23  I've been to the hearings where they're fighting the

         24  developers and trying to keep them from destroying

         25  our water supply, both in the Croton and the
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          2  Cat/Del, and around the Kensico. We fought General

          3  Electric, we beat them. They wanted to expand the

          4  airport right next to this Kensico Reservoir, expand

          5  the road right next to the Kensico from two to four

          6  lanes with a median strip and four acres of wetlands

          7  destroyed and 40 acres of forest. We fought for all

          8  these things and won, without DEP's help.

          9                 DEP says they want to be on the safe

         10  side. They want to be on the conservative side in

         11  making decisions involving filtration. I would like

         12  to see them up there at those hearings. The people

         13  up there want them up there to say let's be on the

         14  conservative side. If you want to build on this

         15  steep slope, build this food processing plant up

         16  there near a stream that's feeding our water. Terra

         17  Vest (phonetic) is one of the projects. I want to be

         18  on the conservative side, and looking at this

         19  Environmental Impact Statement, this should not be

         20  done, because this is a death of a thousand cuts. It

         21  isn't one big decision. And if you build this plant,

         22  there is no question that that watershed is going to

         23  be paved over. Robert Kennedy once looked me in the

         24  eye and said that. He knows. Because of the laws,

         25  because the EPA's 1993 own Environmental Impact

                                                            122

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  Statement on the watershed agreement said

          3  quote/unquote, "With filtration there is less

          4  stringent regulations." And the State law says that

          5  reservoirs, a non-filtered system have to be double

          6  A and in a filtered system have to be A. And the

          7  State when the TMDLs, the Total Maximum Daily Loads

          8  of phosphorus, they made it 25 percent more

          9  available pollutant in the Croton originally

         10  because, as they said, it's going to be filtered.

         11  Filtration will spoil the reservoir system and the

         12  watersheds which is an irreplaceable resource. And

         13  you concentrate all your pollutants in one place,

         14  and if you have an accident like they did in Winn

         15  Milwaukee, where 104 people died and 400,000 got

         16  sick, you're going to have a worse situation, and

         17  with terrorism and with computer terrorism now, with

         18  cyber-terrorism, I just saw a program on Channel 13,

         19  they're exploring our systems from Pakistan now and

         20  we don't have the defenses, and I know because DEP

         21  took us to a plant in Worster, Mass, and that's a

         22  big industrial facility, I don't care what the

         23  Commissioner said, it isn't from the outside, it's

         24  very quiet, but inside it's a chemical mechanical

         25  treatment, big machines in every room turning around

                                                            123

          1  STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  chemicals and mixing them, and it's all run by

          3  computers and it's all tied into the net. So, no

          4  matter where you build it, you're going to be

          5  vulnerable to this.

          6                 Now, we have a system, a particular

          7  system, we're not against filtration everywhere. If

          8  I were drinking from the Hudson, I certainly would

          9  like it filtered. But we have alluvial soils, we

         10  have wetlands, we have geology, it's been explained.

         11  We've had endless meetings on this, and this, in the

         12  system where we have in the Cat/Del, they have steep

         13  slopes, think soils, rocky soils, where in order to

         14  do our program to replace failed septics, we have to

         15  build huge mounds because they don't have the soil.

         16  In other words, we have a system that produces good

         17  water now, and it's improved, the gases has dropped.

         18  I mean, there's a lot to it. It's a very complicated

         19  thing and I don't to take all your time here, but I

         20  have to say this whole thing, as I say in this

         21  piece, in one word stinks.

         22                 And I'll just wind up here. If the

         23  EPA, now, we've been down to Washington on the

         24  chemicals that they're talking about. Those

         25  chemicals, the World Health Organization said that
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          2  their disinfection bi-problem (sic) was a

          3  non-problem. They said there were a couple that had

          4  a problem, a slight statistical significance, and

          5  those two required salt as a precursor, and we don't

          6  have salt. So, to ruin a natural supply system for

          7  reasons that EPA puts forward that aren't even that

          8  persuasive, if EPA really wants to protect our water

          9  supply system, then they might move to close Indian

         10  Point.

         11                 A plane five minutes away at

         12  Westchester Airport could hit the poorly protected

         13  spent fuel building and caused 17 times more

         14  permanent devastation than Chernobyl, and that's

         15  what Bobby Kennedy said, yet when asked about Indian

         16  Point at a meeting, EPA replied that it wasn't in

         17  the watershed. Now, it isn't. It drains into the

         18  property, the property it's built on. Tell that to

         19  the wind-blowing radiation over all our reservoirs

         20  til the pipes in the City glow in the dark.

         21                 This is an incredibly serious

         22  situation. And, so, here we are diddling over this

         23  thing when we have huge things hanging over our

         24  heads, and I, as a citizen, who has spent a good

         25  part of my life in this, I find it outrageous.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          3  much, sir.

          4                 Next we will hear from former Parks

          5  Commissioner Henry J. Stern. And you'll say your

          6  Parks' name, and I'll say mine. I'm Mambo Kid, and

          7  you are?

          8                 MR. STERN: I'm Stark West.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: There you go.

         10                 MR. STERN: And Olly?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Glock.

         12                 MR. STERN: Glock, G-l-o-c-k. And many

         13  of these distinguished people here have park names.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Do you remember

         15  them all?

         16                 MR. STERN: No. There are a total of

         17  10,400. I didn't bring the book, and I didn't bring

         18  the dog.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Oh, okay.

         20                 MR. STERN: I am here on this, and I'm

         21  very concerned with doing the right thing, and I

         22  have no comment on the need of filtration because

         23  I'm not an expert in that subject, but assuming that

         24  issue has been decided and the water must be

         25  filtered, the question then becomes the location of
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          2  the filter plant.

          3                 And my feeling was it's preferable

          4  not to have these plants in parkland, because

          5  parkland is limited and precious and supposed to be

          6  open space.

          7                 Now, if it is unavoidable for the

          8  filter plant to be located anywhere else, there are

          9  certain conditions which I would think would have to

         10  be fairness imposed.

         11                 One is that all the land above the

         12  filter plant remain within the jurisdiction of Parks

         13  and Recreation, and that the DEP be given authority,

         14  license, alienation rights for those areas below

         15  ground which is necessary to construct their

         16  facility.

         17                 Now, we had a similar situation in

         18  the Hudson River where the filtration, which is

         19  underneath -- well, that's not filtration, that's a

         20  sewage plant, underneath Riverbank State Park, and

         21  the authorities divided underneath the appropriate

         22  State department and on top of, State Parks,

         23  Recreation and Historic Preservation, and that has

         24  worked out recently and has been no threat to the

         25  parkland.
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          2                 The language which alienates the

          3  entire area is a threat to the parkland.

          4                 Now, in addition the question is how

          5  much should be available? My understanding was it's

          6  all going to be available for parkland, with the

          7  exception maybe of a couple of acres where there's a

          8  building or something like that, which is necessary

          9  and we realize that. What I am told, and this is

         10  what I'm told, is that there's a division in this

         11  bill between section 3 and section 4, that section 3

         12  is 47 acres, and section 4 is about five acres, and

         13  that the language in section 3 is without limitation

         14  as to a permanent and irrevocable and as we learned

         15  in law school from the sky to the center of the

         16  earth, it's said in Latin, coella or something, and

         17  the park cover, the park participation is only

         18  section 4, which is five acres, which means the area

         19  that will be restored as parkland is less than

         20  one-tenth of the area that will be taken for the

         21  plant.

         22                 I think that's terrible. That means

         23  that the overwhelming majority of the land will be

         24  lost to park purposes.

         25                 I don't know when 50 acres have been
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          2  alienated on time from the New York City Parks

          3  system, since Robert Moses built his highways

          4  through the park, which did a great deal to the

          5  park.

          6                 Now we have a situation, and to

          7  summarize, because I appreciate your calling me out

          8  of turn, and I don't want to abuse the privilege, I

          9  think this is something that can possibly be done if

         10  it is done right. If the 200 to 250 million dollars

         11  is made available for park purposes, if the parks in

         12  the Bronx are rehabilitated, as a result of this, if

         13  the land which you're building underground, or 90,

         14  95 percent of it, be available for recreational use

         15  to the planting of trees if necessary, there are 259

         16  trees that are supposed to be impacted by this,

         17  impacted is a very polite word for destroy, and what

         18  I'd like to see is those trees replanted on the site

         19  after the construction is completed, 20 something.

         20                 So, those are important to watch out

         21  for. Now the role of the State, Committee and State

         22  Legislation here is in effect you're the City's only

         23  watchdog at this point, because once the bill is

         24  approved by the State Legislature, then that is

         25  done, and if they get more authority than they need,
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          2  or a larger area, where there aren't conditions

          3  written into the legislation to protect the City

          4  parkland and other parks of the Bronx, it will be

          5  over, and we won't have, we will very well not have

          6  another bite of the apple.

          7                 So, I would urge this Committee, and

          8  I'm so pleased that the two members who are here

          9  from the Bronx, and that they have, both represent

         10  the immediate district and an important leadership

         11  position, because you two really are the stewards of

         12  this parkland, and you know how it was turned over

         13  to you in the beginning of your term, in your case,

         14  and being in your father's term, it was good, and

         15  you don't want to let it become much worse, and you

         16  don't want it to be destroyed.

         17                 There will be enough dislocation when

         18  this is built which will take five, seven, who knows

         19  how many years, and that's a matter you decide where

         20  you build the plant. But once it's over, you want it

         21  to be restored, park people want it to be restored,

         22  and just as good as it was, and you can't make it

         23  just as good as it was, if you're only restoring

         24  five acres out of the 52.

         25                 Now, I saw a pamphlet back there
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          2  which listed the 1999 plan as taking some 70 acres

          3  and the 2003 design, which I assume is what you're

          4  considering today as taking 28 acres. That's what it

          5  says in that folder which was produced by DEP; has

          6  everyone seen it? Okay, so this has come from

          7  Commissioner Ward. Show me the page.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And while you're

          9  looking for the page I just want to --

         10                 MR. STERN: Here it is.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay.

         12                 MR. STERN: Well, the pages aren't

         13  numbered, but here's the chart and it says "2003

         14  design, 28 acres." Well, if that is true, why is the

         15  request for alienation 52 acres?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We're clarifying

         17  --

         18                 MR. STERN: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: But it's 52 acres

         20  -- we do understand that most of the permanent

         21  alienation is going to be underground parkland and

         22  not above-ground. But we're going to clarify. We

         23  have some information from DEP that it's going to be

         24  underground alienated parkland and not usable

         25  because it's going to be underground.
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          2                 MR. STERN: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We're going to

          4  clarify that and get that information and provide

          5  that for you.

          6                 We also have, besides the 43 million

          7  in mitigation and $200 million, there's also a

          8  proposal for $13 million for the reforestation, not

          9  on the exact site, though, that you were talking

         10  about, but there is another $13 million for

         11  replanting of additional trees.

         12                 MR. STERN: Well, it's just been my

         13  experience, Councilman, perhaps it's cynicism that

         14  comes with age, you have the vision, the imagination

         15  of youth. When I was your age I was working for the

         16  City of New York, too, and it has been my experience

         17  that many commitments made in the course of securing

         18  legislative approval of a particular plan and

         19  facility are simply not met over the course of time,

         20  and the obvious reason is financial insufficiency,

         21  enough money in the budget to do this.

         22                 Another is the funding authority

         23  hasn't done it, in this case there's federal funds

         24  involved, as well as Water Board funds.

         25                 Another thing they may say is time
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          2  and circumstances changed. There are so many reasons

          3  not to do something expensive, but once you've

          4  secured your approvals, that I would suggest that

          5  the Committee on State and Legislation write into

          6  the legislation all the terms and conditions they

          7  wish to impose on the construction of the plant,

          8  because of otherwise they'll be of no force and

          9  effect, they will simply be empty promises, and

         10  we're too often taken down the primrose path. The

         11  primrose path is like the road to hell, which is

         12  paved with good intentions, and the primrose path is

         13  a stroll down, with beautiful flowers on the side of

         14  it but you don't get to the end of it.

         15                 So that would be my specific

         16  suggestion, that all the things that you think are

         17  reasonable, the part of the legislation, either

         18  sections or by themselves, this establish a

         19  legislative history, this is adopted on the

         20  condition that A, B and C be done. Then years from

         21  now when term limits have taken you away and life

         22  limits have taken me away --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We hope that

         24  doesn't happen.

         25                 MR. STERN: Thank you. Not for awhile
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          2  I hope. But, you know, in the fullness of time we

          3  want our successors to be able to hold people to a

          4  legally binding obligation. And not all the talk in

          5  this room, whatever you or Councilman Koppell or I

          6  might say will have no force and effect whatsoever

          7  unless it is written into the legislation and that

          8  is what I urge you to do.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Oliver?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: With respect

         11  to the issue of what is alienated or not, and I know

         12  that the representative of the Commissioner is still

         13  here, which is good, I think we should get maps to

         14  show us exactly, because the meets and bounds mean

         15  nothing to me. I think we should get a map to show

         16  us what is being alienated and what isn't.

         17                 I think it is true what the Chairman

         18  said, that I think the alienation legislation has to

         19  alienate the land where the plant is built. In other

         20  words, if the plant actually is built over a 28-acre

         21  expanse, even though it's covered over with grass

         22  and trees, at least grass afterward, that still is

         23  alienated, I think that's what actually the Court

         24  decided when the Court decided that you needed

         25  alienation, because the argument the City made was
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          2  it weren't alienating it if you brought it back to

          3  park status, and that was rejected by the Court.

          4                 So, I think that there are some parts

          5  of the Park that are being temporarily alienated

          6  primarily for access during construction, if I'm not

          7  mistaken, and then there are other parts that are

          8  permanently alienated because the plant is

          9  underneath.

         10                 But I think we should have maps to

         11  explain all this exactly, because the meets and

         12  bounds in the bill, you know, as they say, I don't

         13  know what they mean, because I would have to put

         14  them on a map.

         15                 So, that's what I think the Committee

         16  should have so we understand exactly what's going on

         17  here.

         18                 I think, Commissioner, we appreciate

         19  your suggestion that other conditions be put in the

         20  bill, such as the restoration of the lands, which is

         21  of course not in the bill, but that's been promised

         22  by the City.

         23                 One thing I wanted to ask of you,

         24  because, of course, you were the Park Commissioner

         25  for many years, and that is that --
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          2                 MR. STERN: Fifteen, to be exact.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes. And we

          4  appreciate every one of those years. I've told you

          5  personally, and can only state again, because I

          6  think every single day when I drive in my district,

          7  I thank you especially for the green streets,

          8  because they've made an enormous difference in the

          9  quality of our environment.

         10                 MR. STERN: You know the one that's

         11  called "Dogwood Junction?"

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Absolutely.

         13  Right down the street from my house.

         14                 Anyway, the question I wanted to ask

         15  you was, did you have any experience where parkland

         16  was taken, as the parkland is proposed to be taken

         17  here, for another purpose? Do you recall any similar

         18  situations?

         19                 MR. STERN: There were minor

         20  alienations to cover, for example, a bend in a

         21  highway, if there was straightening out. There was

         22  an alienation which we permitted in Forest Hills,

         23  where Woodhaven Boulevard crosses the Forest Park

         24  Drive, but these are matters of 20, 50 feet. There

         25  was, of course, we lost, it wasn't alienation, when
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          2  ballfields were built in Bloomingdale Park in Staten

          3  Island --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But that's a

          5  park purpose.

          6                 MR. STERN: That's a park purpose.

          7  Legitimate park purpose.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What I'm

          9  trying to get at is this issue of a ULURP to change

         10  the zoning, because of the different use; did you

         11  have any experience with that?

         12                 MR. STERN: No. No, not as far as I

         13  know, we never ULURP'd anything.

         14                 As a matter of fact, we acquired

         15  2,000 acres of parkland during my last eight years

         16  in the Giuliani Administration. We went from 26,000

         17  to 28,000 without money, largely by picking up City

         18  properties whenever we could. But there were no

         19  major alienations of parkland during the period I

         20  was Commissioner, which was from 1983 to 1990, and

         21  then from 1994 to 2002, both Mayors Koch and

         22  Giuliani regarded parkland as sacrosanct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Commissioner,

         25  thank you very much. It's an honor to have you back
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          2  here.

          3                 MR. STERN: It's a pleasure to be here

          4  with you guys, I really enjoy it. And I hope that

          5  you follow-up in the mark-up sessions after the

          6  witnesses.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: We don't have

          8  any mark-up sessions.

          9                 MR. STERN: Oh. The state. The federal

         10  government is supposed to have mark-up sessions.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, there are

         12  mark-up sessions, they don't seem to be available --

         13                 MR. STERN: I see. Okay, thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         16  much, Commissioner.

         17                 MR. STERN: Thank you for having me.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We now have Gwynn

         19  Smalls to testify, and what we're going to do from

         20  here on, because we are running out of time for the

         21  use of the room, we're going to try to limit the

         22  conversation to at least three minutes to get your

         23  point across.

         24                 Thank you very much, Gwynn. Long time

         25  no see.
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          2                 MS. SMALLS: Good afternoon, everyone,

          3  and I'm glad to be here. I'm not going to take much

          4  of your time.

          5                 I just want to second what Ms. Cooke

          6  said and second what the Commissioner said, and I

          7  also want to emphasize the fact that mitigation

          8  should not be discussed as a part of parks

          9  alienation. That is, if you're going to talk about

         10  something in a community, the community that's been

         11  impacted should be a part of mitigation discussions.

         12                 Additionally, I think that the ULURP

         13  process gives the community the right, and the

         14  access to have input, and that you should not

         15  mandate a law and then ask the community to talk

         16  about the law that you mandated, that you should

         17  give the community the right to be a part of the

         18  process.

         19                 Secondly, if you do the ULURP

         20  process, you should look at dual track measures,

         21  avoidance, until you cannot avoid filtration. I'm

         22  not a scientist, and people keep calling me an

         23  environmentalist. I am a neighborhood person with

         24  asthma, that's a Bronx resident, who have children

         25  born in the Bronx, people living in the Bronx, my
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          2  building will be exactly one and a half to two

          3  blocks away from the site.

          4                 I am very concerned about the

          5  accumulative impact of all of the air quality in the

          6  Bronx and the fact that there is major construction

          7  on the MTA-elevated highways, the fact that the

          8  Bronx has 64 plus waste transfer stations, a

          9  pelletization plant, a sewage treatment plant, and

         10  this is a chemical filtering plant, and I do believe

         11  that the accumulative impact on all of this will

         12  impact heavily, heavily on the community.

         13                 And I really like the Commissioner's

         14  definition of impact.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 And we will now hear from Jay

         19  Laubscher, from the Sierra Club.

         20                 MR. WESTPHAL: He's gone.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: He's gone?

         22                 MR. WESTPHAL: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Last but not

         24  least, Dart Westphal. Thank you very much.

         25                 MR. WESTPHAL: Thank you. I'll be as
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          2  brief as I can.

          3                 I'd like to narrow this down to the

          4  question before you, which is a Home Rule Message

          5  asking the State to authorize the City to

          6  discontinue the use of parkland.

          7                 Now, that law will only authorize the

          8  City to do something, and for the City to

          9  discontinue the use of parkland, it does have to be

         10  rezoned. That's in the zoning resolution that you

         11  must, it is in fact in Article 1, Chapter 1,

         12  sections 11 to 13 of the zoning resolution. And if

         13  you want to rezone land for a use in New York City,

         14  that decision has to go through ULURP, it's got to

         15  be heard by the community boards, as people are

         16  pointing out it's got to be heard by the Borough

         17  Board, it's got to be heard by the City Council.

         18  It's up to you whether you want to take that land

         19  and make it be not parkland anymore, and that's what

         20  the City is asking, that you take some land and make

         21  it not be parkland anymore. And to do that, you have

         22  to make that decision overtly. That's the first

         23  thing.

         24                 The second thing is, they're talking

         25  about the Supplemental EIS. The Supplemental EIS is
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          2  a supplement to an EIS done in 1999, concerning a

          3  decision that the City already made.

          4                 The City has already decided to put

          5  the plant in the Park. The other two sites are there

          6  in case they don't get the authority to do so.

          7                 Okay, so, they're going to supplement

          8  that EIS, and according to the Consent Order, once

          9  they've got State legislative authority, and they've

         10  done the supplement to talk about what the impacts

         11  will be, they're done. There's no other time.

         12  There's no other decision, there's no other thing

         13  where the Council will be able to say you've got

         14  these other two sites, compare them to Mosholu and

         15  make a decision. That decision was already made. So,

         16  unless they go through ULURP on the question of

         17  alienating the parkland, you won't have an

         18  opportunity to say something is wrong with it. There

         19  won't be any opportunity to go back and say, if

         20  something awful comes up in the EIS they're doing,

         21  the Supplemental EIS, there is no point when the

         22  City will get to make a decision to force the agency

         23  to change its mind. Because under the Consent Order,

         24  once they get legislative authority to build in

         25  Mosholu, they can stop working on the other two
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          2  sites. And, so, unless you make them go through

          3  ULURP, which I'm urging you to do, and I don't know

          4  about the timing when the legislation for the state

          5  would have to come up versus when the ULURP process

          6  starts, they don't coincide, but unless they have to

          7  go through ULURP, there is no other chance for you

          8  folks to make a decision which you have to make

          9  under the City Charter.

         10                 The fear about all of this is that,

         11  in terms of looking at the Harlem River site, the

         12  City has already done documentation to itself to say

         13  that they're going to override the zoning law.

         14                 The Deputy Mayor has initialed a memo

         15  back to the Commissioner saying we approve you

         16  ignoring the height limitation and a few other

         17  things on the Harlem River site. And they said they

         18  would do that because they say after an

         19  environmental process for that site, which only

         20  begins tonight when the hearings start, by the way,

         21  after, following a detailed review, the City has

         22  identified the Harlem River site as the preferred

         23  location. In a letter from the Commissioner to a

         24  Deputy Mayor, who then wrote back a memo saying,

         25  yes, okay, ignore the zoning laws.
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          2                 So, when the Commissioner says, well,

          3  if we have to zone it, there are other methods to

          4  zone it, our fear is that their method is they'll

          5  write themselves a letter. They'll say we get to

          6  ignore the zoning, don't we? The Deputy Mayor will

          7  say, yeah, you do. And they'll say we're done.

          8                 The City Council, the

          9  Charter-mandated organization that gets to say

         10  things about zoning, will be completely cut out of

         11  the process, and they're rushing you to Albany

         12  saying, ooh, there's going to be fines, you better

         13  hurry up, we're going to be in trouble. If they're

         14  in such a hurry, they should have started this a

         15  year ago.

         16                 They came to you at the last minute.

         17  In fact, the last minute was a month and a half ago.

         18  The deadline is over. It was April 30th, and

         19  there's, oh, we got another deadline. Nothing is

         20  ever written down, nobody ever knows what they're

         21  doing. They just say we've got another deadline. And

         22  if we don't there's going to be fines.

         23                 Well, the debt service on building

         24  the plant is cheaper than the fines. I mean what's a

         25  billion and a half times bond rates? I mean, it's a
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          2  lot more than $25,000 a day.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It's the

          4  other way around. You said the building is cheaper;

          5  the fines are cheaper.

          6                 MR. WESTPHAL: The fines are cheaper,

          7  yes. The debt service is more than $25,000 a day,

          8  which is what they're saying the fines are, which

          9  it's unclear about.

         10                 So, all this rush to everything is to

         11  make them be able to make a deal without the input

         12  of the community, the borough, through the Borough

         13  Board, which is the normal way to do ULURP in this

         14  City. I mean, I've been following this project for

         15  15 years, and I've been doing ULURP since 1980. I

         16  mean, the normal thing that we do, and there is an

         17  example from 1984, of some land that was turned over

         18  by the Parks Department to Fordham University to

         19  build 202 housing. It's called Rose Hill, it used to

         20  be in Councilman Koppell's district, it probably

         21  isn't anymore. It might be in Ms. Baez'.

         22                 Rose Hill Senior Citizen Complex on

         23  Southern Boulevard was alienated through the normal

         24  ULURP process. On January 4th, of 1984, the Board of

         25  Estimate then, now it's you folks, said, yes, you
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          2  can take this parkland which is not being used as

          3  parkland, it's next to a railroad track, it's not

          4  important. You can take that land, you can dispose

          5  of it to a Housing Development Fund Corporation and

          6  build 202 Housing.

          7                 That's what we normally do in this

          8  City. And the Administration is not willing to do

          9  that for reasons that I don't quite comprehend. But

         10  it doesn't matter, it's against the law. They just

         11  can't do it. If you want to alienate parkland, which

         12  the bill does not do, it just authorizes it. If you

         13  want to alienate parkland, you've got to go through

         14  ULURP, which means you get to decide.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Can I interject

         16  real quick?

         17                 It's really like almost, I mean in

         18  1999 we did the ULURP process, and then we went to

         19  court, and then the Court decided that we don't need

         20  the ULURP process, we need the State Federal, a Home

         21  Rule and legislation to alienate a park.

         22                 MR. WESTPHAL: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Or the fact that

         24  the Court just said that we needed State legislation

         25  to alienate the park because that is the process.
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          2                 MR. WESTPHAL: The only State --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I just want to

          4  get clarification.

          5                 So, then now we're back saying that

          6  now we've got to do ULURP again, but the problem is,

          7  is that -- and you know ULURP, ULURP is on property

          8  and land, not on projects.

          9                 MR. WESTPHAL: Exactly correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: So, therefore,

         11  whether the project goes bigger or smaller, it

         12  technically does not matter because it's on the land

         13  itself.

         14                 MR. WESTPHAL: The old ULURP never

         15  asked the question should these land be parkland or

         16  not? The City said it's going to be parkland, you

         17  don't have to ask that question. And the Court said,

         18  no, you have to ask that question, and you have to

         19  get the State's authority to do that. But the doing

         20  of it, the unparking of the land, the making it not

         21  be parkland anymore, according to the City Charter,

         22  and I know it's a pain in the neck, you feel like

         23  you've been there already, it doesn't matter. The

         24  City Charter says whenever you take land and make it

         25  not be park, which we didn't do before in the last
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          2  ULURP, we never did that. The City said you don't

          3  have to ask that question. Well, they were wrong.

          4                 Once you try to answer that question,

          5  the decision on that has to go through ULURP. The

          6  City Council, in place of the Board of Estimate, has

          7  to decide, yep, that's not parkland anymore, it's

          8  industrial property, and you have to turn it into

          9  industrial property to put the plant there, and it's

         10  complex, they have to set up a whole bunch of stuff,

         11  and the stuff they had to set up on Harlem River,

         12  they said, well, we'll just skip it by writing a

         13  memo to ourselves. This is bizarre. The City doesn't

         14  run that way. You must go through ULURP. I'm sorry

         15  it's a pain in the neck.

         16                 The good thing about ULURP is it's an

         17  open, public process. It's the way we do all the

         18  stuff all these people have asked. Where are the

         19  documents? Which lane are we talking about? What do

         20  you mean it's underground? Where is it underground?

         21  Let's see a map. Let's do an MOU on the money. Let's

         22  do an MOU on the job. Let's do all of that stuff.

         23  And the time when you're supposed to do all of that

         24  stuff is not at the last minute before you go to the

         25  State to get an authorization, but it's during the
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          2  ULURP process. That's what it was invented for.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: It's incorrect

          4  regarding the need for the rezoning change because

          5  the park isn't being alienated for the purposes of

          6  construction of a filtration plant, and it is not

          7  being demapped.

          8                 MR. WESTPHAL: Wait a minute.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: So, actually that

         10  would require the concurrent zoning law --

         11                 MR. WESTPHAL: What are you reading

         12  that from?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: This is from our

         14  Land Use Division that has stated that we do not

         15  have to do the rezoning because of the fact that

         16  that parkland is not being demapped, it's just being

         17  utilized for the construction for the filtration

         18  plant.

         19                 MR. WESTPHAL: I'm sorry, it's

         20  alienation. I mean, the City Charter and the zoning

         21  resolution are clear. Please, these are the same

         22  people that said you didn't have to alienate it

         23  before. They were wrong. We went to court. We had a

         24  unanimous decision.

         25                 All the City lawyers said, no, no,
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          2  no, you don't have the alienate the property, you

          3  can just do it. Well, they were wrong before.

          4  They're wrong again.

          5                 It's clear. It's in the zoning code.

          6  It's in the charter, you've got to go through ULURP

          7  to alienate parkland. The last time it happened,

          8  1984, that's what happened.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: We'll continue to

         10  look at it, but we've looked at it time and time and

         11  time and time again, apparently the decision and the

         12  consensus has been that the rezoning is not

         13  necessary. But we'll look at it again, and the ULURP

         14  process has already been done, and you know ULURP,

         15  and it's based on property and land and not based on

         16  projects, so, therefore, the argument --

         17                 MR. WESTPHAL: Forgive me, but you're

         18  being misled. You're being misled.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you, sir.

         20  And thank you everyone, for coming out for the

         21  second hearing, and I'm glad we've been able to have

         22  two hearings to discuss this issue.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 Meeting is adjourned.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m.)
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